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A, The warranty datsa is a count of the number
of switches that are replaced under the warranty
program at Ford over time. The -- The -- The data
that we looked at, I don't recall exacktly what it
waa at the!tima.

Q. Okazy. The -- The warranties data tells
you 1f there have been switches that have been
returned by cuatomers and Fard dealert bhecsausas tﬁare
wera problems with thoss awitéhes?

A. That'e correct.

o, And theoe swit:hen that weres called {sic.]
in 1959 ware manufactured either eight years earlier

Or seven yesars earlier; is. that right?

A. The switchesa that wers heing recazlled?
Q. Yea. |

A. _Yes.

Q. They were manu -- The racall was in '59,

But the -wltch-a that ware invelved are switchas

that were manufactured somstime in 1391 or '927

A. That is correct.
Q. Okay. So you had meveral years available
1=-] ?nu of what the fileld -- what the fiald warranty

numbera looked like, carract?
A. That would be included in that databasa,

yes.
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- q. Right. And tell me how you went about
locking at what the ﬁarranty data indlcaced.

A. What we would get is an output of the
warranty data would be a graph of the numbar of
repalre per thousand vehicles versus the build date
of the vehicles.

g. And how many ~- Prior to 1958 and the
investigaticn,.haw many sawitechee had been returned
through this warranty data syatem?

A.. I don't know what that number is.

Q. Do you know ﬁnw it compar=d te the number
of swit¢hes that had been s8o0ld during that cime
pariad?

A. No, I do not know what the compariscn ia
at‘this point. I don't remamber those numbers. I'd
have eo go back and look at the data.

Q. Did it indicate -- Did your analysis
indicate tﬁat there was an gpuaual warranty
incidence on this part prior to your inveacigation?

A, At thisa pnint in time I can't raally tell
you what -- what a ceoaclusion on that without
looking ;t the data.

0. What wuuldlhe unusual?

A. What would hs unusual?

Q. Uh-huh. Yeah.
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a. Some ancmaly. I mean, if there waa a -- az
apike or a high number compared to the rest of the

povulation.

2. And what wgould thakt tell you?
A. That would aay that there was a problenm.
Q. There were sowe awitches ocut there that

had problema and had to come back; right?

A. That's what that indicaticﬁ would hke.

. And are you able to sitc here and tell us
a5 the representative for Ford that there ware
unusual warranty retur;a on this awitch pricr to
193287

A. I would hava to loock at the data ko raply
to that anawer.

* 2. That fact doean't stick in your mind
though as you sit here today, does it?

A. But that is elither that it's good or bad.

Q. I understand that. But you -- you deon'k
ﬁave any recollectiona aitting here today tﬁat thereé
was unusual warr;ngy returne, do you?

ﬂR.'FEEHEr: He'm answered this
gquestion now three timea. Come cn.

A, I don't know that there was -- that --
that it was unuasuzal eor not uwnusual.

Q. When the -- When the wiring connector is
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delivered to the Ford factory at Wixom, is the
connector shipped separately or is it attached to a
wirg and harness?

A. The connector coming inkc the Wixom plant
at -- at Ford typically weuld .come in as part of a
wiring harnesa.

c. Would there be any other things attached
to it cther than a wiring harness do you know?

A. I wouldn't know what else would be on the
wiring harnasse.

- Do you know iIf the wiring harnesa is
supplied by United Technologiea?

A. I don't know who the aupp;ier is on that.

@- Did you look at -- In your inveastigation,
did you look te sse what exactly was shipped by
United Tachnolcgies, whether it was an assembled
componeant or som& separate components?

A. We asked Norm LaPointe to look inte that

and hea came back that there wasg really nothing of --

of -- of importance asscociated with that.

Q. 80 as far as you knew, at lasast, scmaone
reportsd to you that the product wae shipped with a
wiring harnese?

A. Yas.

Q. And beyond that there wae nothing unusual

AAR COURT REPDRTERS 713 4&&-9325
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-reported?

AL That is cnfrect.

Q. " When Texas Inatruments -- Whan Ford
decided to do isaue ita recall and changes the brake
presaure switch supplied by T.I. and a connector,
did United Technologies manufacturse tha new
connector?

A. I'm not sure who was the manufacturer of
the connecter.

Q2. Do you know whether the new connector was
a foam seal or a Biliﬁ;ﬂ seal?

A, I don'tk recall which one it is.

. Do you know whether, in your
investigation, you ncocticed any potantial problema
wi%h either the fosm seal or the sllicon seal?

A. During the investigation we did act find
thiﬁk problama with the foam or the silicoa.

a. ﬁha ig the perscn that would knew the
aﬁawar of whathar or not tha recall chagged a swiltch
Erom a faam seal to a silicon seal or wice-versa?

A. I -- it would be in the data that was --
waslprnvided: Part of those nwitcha#, it would be
on the apecificatian.

Q. I'm tryin§ to find.cut L1f thers's any

individual opther than yourself whe I sheuld direet

AA2A COURT REPORTERS 7131 466-23125
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-those guestions to.

A. 1 think thakt, lecking at the
spacifi;atinn, we could find out that lanformaticn.
I just don't know it off the top of my head.

Q. ﬁu you know how many parts -- Well, when
you have & warranty item come back te you at Ford,
doea Ford then provide those parts to Texas
Instruments, the comporent manufacturer, and ask
them ta assist in looking at the -- the warranty
retuxrn?

A. I can‘t tell-you exactly what happened
with theage parts.

Q. Do you knew how many warranty parts for
this brake presaure Ewitch were returned to Texas

In;trumanta Erom 18%1 to 19987

A. I'd cnly be able to tell that locking at
the data. |

Q. i}m gorry. I didn't hear that.

A. I'd only be able to tall that 1naking at
the data.

Q. ﬁq you know if it was some -- Was chat

somebody that Ford tracked?
A. That would be something that Ford tracks,
yves.

0. And sitting here today, you're not able to

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 4£66-9325 .
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tell us even a ballpark on that?

A, No, I cannotb.

Q. Do you think T.I. would alac have raccrds
on that?

A I would say hope they did.

2. Have you asked anyene from Taxas

Instruments whether they experienced an unuaual
warranty recall --.return == I'm sorrxy -- for this
partc?

A, We did ask that as part of the

investigation.

0. Who did you ask that to?
A. It would've been members of T.I. who were
representeé at tha -- the m=etings.
R+ And do you remember what anewers you
received?
A. - The ansgwers that we typically got from

T.I. waa basically surprise that we thought theze
wage any warranty issue at all.

Q. Do you rsmember whether people from Texas
Instruments indicated that they had recelved any
'particular number ofluwitahen hack?

A. I don't regall what they would’ve sz2id.

o. Can you give me the names df'the people

who ware at the meetings that you belisve this issue

AARA COURT REPSRTERS 713 466-9325
959% Jones Road, Mo. 363, Houestoen, Texas 77065
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wag raiaed at?

Aa. There were a varlety of people that --
that could've been inveolved: Andy McGuirk, Azi=z

Rahman, Steve Eeringhause. There were octher pecple
that were éonneeted ic by phané that I don'k récall
exactly who they were.

Q. Ckay. And you are -- you are fairly
confident that this 1ssue was discussed?

A. Somewhare during the investigation, yes.

o, .Did vou keep neotes of what transpired in

the meetlngs that you attended?

A. No, I did nct.
o. Was there somebody designated to keep

notes?
- A. I think pecple kept notes as they needed

them.

Q. Let me hanﬂ you what we're goling to mark
a8 Exhibit s5.

| {Exhibit No. &6 marked.)

. Exhiblt 6, Mr. Porter, appears to me to be
a printout of portions &f your calendaf. Hquld you
take a look at it and tell us if thie is, in fact,
your galendar?

A. That appeara to be the case.

. Okay. HNow, you said you got invelved in

AMRA COURT REFQRTERS 713 466-3325
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‘the investigation, I think, in November of 19%9%8 --

A, Yes.
c. -- is that correct? On the page for
November of 1998, I don't sege any entries. Is rthere

a reagon for thae?

A. Yes, there is.
Q. Okay.
A. Betwean then and now, & couple of

different thinga have happened; not the least of
which is that rhe syat?m umed for keeping the
calendars of Ford Motor Company have changed. And
that happened in that time pericd. And as far as I
know, all the information on the old system was

laost,

Q. Ckay. And when -- when did that syatem

change and the information was logt? When did that

happen?

A. I don't remember ax;ctly_when thar
h;ppuned. |

Q. ¥hen 4id the system change?

A. I don't know when that happemned. But I

would guesé, just from the data hare, that it
happened sometime in the April time frame.
Q. Okay. And so you were working on the

problem and the inveatigatien, but thers'a aimply --

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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_there are no entrlea bhecause the data's not

available?

A. That'a correct.

Q. Icr'as been lost: is that right?

A. That's correct.

Q- And the firast entry that I see on your

calendar, it logks to me to be April Ist of the year

1999%.

A. That's correct.

a. Ckay. And then explain a little bit how
your calendars works. 'Ia this a computerizad

calendar that you keep at your desk?

A. This ie a computerized calendar that’'s
kept en the centralized system.

Q. and do you attend all the meetings that
are listed hera?

aA. Not necassarily.-

Q. How do we know which ones are ones that

you attend and which ones you don't?

A. Thera's no indication af thar.
Q. Let me just try to go down one of them and
get an'undarstanding_uf how it worka. Let'sa just

take Monday, April the i2th. Do you EBee that?
A. Ckay.

Q. 8:30 to.luauﬂ, Elactrical quarterback, ls

~ AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-32325
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that some type of regular wmeetilng thatrs held at
Ford? |

A, In that time period, that was a standard
meeting that was helid at the Ford, yes.

Q. hﬁd would be a meetiﬁg that you would've

attended cthat?

A. I may have attended that cne or I might
not have. That was a gen=ral meting.
@. All right. What's the purpose of the

meeting, duat briefly?

A. The purpose of that meeting was to discuas
the warranty improvemants that were being worked at
Ford.

Q. Okay. The guarterback, I mean, doces that
refer to like football?

A; Basgically, like football, yvou know, as the

captain of the ahip or whatever.

Q. And was that your puaitiﬁn?

A, Ne, air.

0. | Who -~ Wheo h;ld that poeiticn?

A. I baliave, .for ;ht alaztriecal qguarterback,

that was the Direttc: af Electrical Electronic
Eystama Enginearing.
a. 1n& who was that?

A. Kerry Wileon.

AhA COURT REFPCRTERS 713 455-5;25
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- Q. Is that man ©or 3 woman?
a. That's a man.
Q. And was My. Wilseon involved in the

investigation intc the speed control on the 1952,
93 Lincolﬁ Town Car?

A. Mo, hes wae not.

. If you logk further down on that day

there's 18 a reference, 1992, '93 Town Car. Do you

Bes that?
A. Yes, I do.
Q. Okay. Now, ie that the investigation you

worked an?

A. That would've been a meetling consistent
with the investigaticn, ves.

Q. And then the naxt day thers's anather
entry at 7:00 a.m. It says: Speed CQontrol
Deactivation ewitch. 1@s that & different working
group?

A. I'm.not sure who's necsssarily involved in
those groupa. It was preobably .a different working
group, yes.

Q. I gueas, what I'm trying to £ind cut is,

ia chat somebody just -- it's the same group, but

|thay typed a different nama in or are thase actually

different -- different groups of paople’'s work ox

AAA COURT REPORTERE 713 4E6-5325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Heuston, Texas 77065
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rdlfferent investlgations?

A, I can't tell you what is different about
those -- those meertings. The -- I balieve -- [
guaess I -- I really can't recall that -- you knaow,

wheo was in*olved with thoee, if they were the zame
people or different people.

Q. Okay. If you look, for example, on the
last day of the month there;s gomathing from 8:30 ko
9:30, '92 '%2, under hcood Town Car deactivakion
swltch. 1Is that, again, diffarent cthan the other
two we've Juat talked ;haut?

A. It very well could've beesn.

Q. Well, how many investigations were geing
en in April regarding this espsed control
de;:tivation awitch?

A. Thare was one lnvestigation going on,
several meesting happening with respeet bo that

inveatigation.

0. And were you attending all of them?
A. I would try to attend most of them.
Q. Whoe was leading the '52, '%3 Town Car

inveastigation that's listed thexre on April 12th?
A. I'm not sura who -- who would’'ve called

that meeting.

0. Who wam leading the 7:30 to 8:30 a.m.

AAA COURT REPQRTERS 713 466-92325
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10

11

1z

13

14

15

ls

17

18

19

20
21
22
23
.24

25

170

apeaed control deactivation switeh ligted on April
rhe 13th? I'm not interested in who called the

meeting. I'm trying to find out who the leaders

wEYre.

A. ﬁall, the lead for the investigation was
ne .

Q. okay?

A, Ckay. Who waa -- You know, the purpose of

the different meetings could've had varicus
characterisctics of the aspect of the investigation,
depending on people's schedules and availability.

As an example, we might go over te Sc¢i lab and ko

understand what they had. That would ahow up ag --

It could either be a speed control deactivatlion
awltch meeting or 1992, '93 Town Car meeting and --

and that, you know, a variety of meetinge that were

-|happening on this was great. But gverall, I was the

leader.’

Q. Okay. If vou look on the Eh ~- I'm
sorry -- 13tﬁ, thera is a remference gf 2:00 to 3:00
to alr suspansion. What was that meeting about?

A I don't know whdt that meetling was about.

(o] D;d you attaend it? _
A I ecan't tell you that. I don't know.
Q

Wae there an inveastigatien into the alr

AARR COURT REPORTERS 713 466~-9325
93537 Jonas Road, No. 363, Houstcn, Texas 77063
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fauspension system on any of the vehiclas that vaou
participated in? |

A. What kind of inveatigation do you mean?

0. Wall, T den't have a whole lot to go for.
All it sayé ia Air suspension.'_There wWere gure a
lot of meetings on air suspensicn. So why don't you
tell us what they wera abour?

A. Well, what I can tell you ia that part of
my poeicleon as chassis electronics superviscr dea}s
with a lot of components that are in the chaasia
dystem, air suspension being one of those. The
facts that there's a meeting on air suspension gfos=s
put naecesgarily mean that thare's an investigakion.

Q. I understand that. There's a -- If you
cohnt up the number of air suspension meeting in
April, there are more af them than there ara brake
pressurae meabtinga, Se¢ I'm just trying to find out,

do you remember aitting here today what thoae

meatinge wera about? And 1f sc, what were they

about?
A. No, I doan't reameamber what thoa; ware
about. |
0. Who attended rthosa groups wilith you benides_

you, alr suspension?

A. The alr suspension? It -- Again, I --

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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| First of all, I don't recall necessarily geoing to

that meeting. I may not have gone to those
meetings. But, you know, it could've -- it would'wve

been air suspension engineers.

Q. By the namea of?
A. Depending on which programs rthey are.
Q. Can you give me the names of any engineers

that vou attended -- air suapeneion meetings with --
during the same time yocu ware dolng the
invastigacion inte this '92, '%3 Lincoln Town Car?

A, Right now I cannot reecall what would'wve
gone on back then.

Q. Were those mestings Iln any way related to
the investigation of the under hecod flres in the
Lincoln Town Cara?

A No, they were not.

Q. _.Did that have t¢& do with & completely
different vehicle line?

A, They may have dealt with tha Town Car,
Crown Vie, Grand Marguis; but they wmay have heen a

differant vehicle line also.

Q. You just don't knaow?
A, I don't know.
Q. If I'm trying to track the number of

meatings that were involvad with the Lincoln Town

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Rcad, No. 363, Houston, Texae 77065
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Car deactivation switch and the investigation in
undef hoad fires, wouid it be safe to smay cthat I
could exclude the air suapqnainn_meetings?

A, It would be Bafe to say yeu exclude the
air auspenéibn meetings.

o. There are some miacellaneaus things that T
see. Por example, secufity, satety, chaesis, EE sub
systems. You see that on the 2%th., Is that

unrelated?

A. The 29th? ©Oh, I'm sorry. I was looking
ar the wrong date. That would bes unrelated, yes.
Q. Okay. &And if you look onr the next page in

May there is an entry, 8:00 o'clock to %:00 o'clock
on Wednesday, the 5th, EQL diagnostics. What 1ag

that?

A, I balieve EOL would stand for End Of Line.

So that would be a mesting on End Of Line

diagnostics.
o. And what 1as that?
A. The and of the assenbly line is a test to

make sure that contrel modules are workiag.

Q. Was that teat done at tha.ﬂixam'plant?
A. Which test?
Q. Teo determine whether the components were

functioning properly.

AAA COURT REPQRTERS 711 456-5325
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A. Well, what -- what this one iz leocking at
specifically, being End Of Line diagnostics, is what
kind of diagnostics would be done on s particular
program. And I'm not gure which program this one's
referring én.

Q. What typee -- Was this something you wers
involved in, diagnoatice? 1Ie this somathing that
yuu.have a specialty in?

A. Part of my group's objectives or part of
my group'a task 18 to work with our suppliers who
are supplying control ;adules to define what
diagnoetice thelr contrecl modulea have.

g. And that was part of your job in 19557
That's correct.

How long has that been part of your Job?

" 8lnge 1995,

0 » O b

Were there End OF Line diagnostice in the
1852, '393 Lincaln Town Carsft
| A Yeg, Lhere weare.
Q. Whar Eypes of things did they diagnose?
A. We -- The one that I am particularly --
The only one that I knew of aince I wae involved
with the 1932, '83 Town Car &aaign was the rear air
suspaneicon medule.

2. Okay. And what Eypa diagnoetic was in the

ARA COURT REPORTEES 7131 466-93E25
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¢ar and how did 1t relate to the rear alr suspense

‘modulae?

Al There's a lamp in the -- in the wvehicle
that turnas an if the rear air suapansion isn't
working prﬁherly. Actually, I think it's a messags
in the message center. And the diagnostics were ko
make sure that when the module turns on and checked

cut the gystem and it worked properly.

g. . And how doea it de that?

A. How does it --

a. How does it check ocut that it's warking
properly?

A. The microprocessor in the medule goes out
and clears the -- the different senscrs and
actuators.

Q. And looks for anomaliea?

A. Well, lcoks -- logks that they're

aparnting.- Hﬁt neceasarlly for anomalies, but looks
for -- that they're operating.
a. Like an sarly warning systam, to see if

the awitches are cperating properly?

A. What switches?
Q. The air suspension.
A. There arep't -« Thers aren't switches in

the -- in the air suspensaion.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 468-33i15
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- c. But the diagnestics is degigned to go and
examine a component to make sure that component's
working properly and notify the owner If it's net?

I mean, in a simple manner, that's what diagnostics

do?

A. The diagneostics are thera tg identify
whether the component -- or net the
componants -- byt whether the aystewm is operating;

not neceasarily to a component level,

Q. And who dacides which diagnostics to put
in the vehicle? 1Ia th;t eomething that's in Ford'e
reaponsibllities?

A. That'sa usually agreed on betwean tha
supplier and Ford.

) Q. And the speed control syetem, who made the
decisions on what diagnostice to put in that aystem?
Wase that Ford or was that Highlight? Was it Texas
Inn:rument?? Who -- Who planned the diagnostics for
that vahicle? -

A, The d;agnnsticn for that vehicle line ware

tha spaesd control system. I would may that it was

probably the Speed Control Englineeriang Group.

Q. At Fozrd?
A. At Ford.
Q- Texas Ingtruments had nothing teo de with

ARR COURT REPQORTERS 713 466-%325
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the diagnocatica, as far as you know, on that vehicle
for apemsd contrel?

A. Yea, they did.

a. How ware they invelved?

g. fhey would have identified to Ford what
failure modes thalr cnﬁpanent could have and
identify ta_Furd what the -- what tha regults of
those failures could've been so thar Ford could look
fcr.tha;.

Q. And they wﬁuld -- they would -- By doing
that -- Well, first of all, let me back up. You
weren't involved perscnally, thils is what you
beljigve happened, correct?

A. ~ Thart's correct.

Q. Okay. And they would noctify Ford on what
potential failure modes ars through the use of some
document. I think it's the FMEA?

A. 'failura Modes and Effects Analywis, yes.

Q. And what would Ford do with that FMEA?

A. Thay'gauld look at what the failure modes
wera that the de?i¢e might have and understand which
ones could be detectad.

Q. And enginears at Fard would have that
responalbilicy, at least, in this time frame?

A. Well, they would naasd tha coopsration of
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the suppliera alsoc.
Q. Do you have any evidence toc suggest that

T.I. dld not submit and FMEA on this product?

A I belisve they did submit an FMEA.

Q. Hﬁvn You reviewed 17

a. Yeg, I have.

Q.- When is the last time you reviewad it?
A. Tt wanm ﬁuat recently, not too lang ago.

Q. We asked for Ford's FMER on the cruise
control system. Do you know if that =still exists?
A. No, I do not.

Q. Pid you Look for it when you were doing

your investigatian?

A. I think we may have agked for that.

Q. What ware you toldé when veu asked for it?
a, I wag told that:they wauld look for it.
Q. Were you ever told that they couldn't

locaktae it?

A, They may hlﬁe ﬁold me that. I daontt kRnow,

Q That it had been destroyed?

A, They may have said that.

Q The decision to put in diagncetics on the
1555, I.!ilil Lincoln for speed contrel, do you know
what dlagnoatice PFord engilneera put into thé_speed

contral syetem?

_ ARR COURT REPORTEERES 713 466-9225
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A No, I do not.
Q. Do you know if they had a dlagnoatic to

tell you, for example, if the speed vontrol was

angaged?
A. f don't know that.
Q. Are you able to say whether or not your

inveatigatien looked inte that?

A, Looked into --

Q. =~ What diagnecstica exlated in the gpeed
control aystem. .

a. I den't ~-- can't Baf that we lgooked into
what the diagnestics were for that system cther
than -- You know, I can't say that we locked into
that.

Q. Were you aware oF any prablems that have
been reported to FPord about potential fires in che
air suspenalion at any time?

A. At any time?

Q. Yes, pir.

A, In -- There wae failures in the ailr

suspension system on the 1984 Mark VII aand -- Mark

VII.
a. Did it reavlt in fires?
A. Yee, it dig.
.'Q, Were vou aware of any clrime by anybody

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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that ths alr suspenaipon in the *92, '93 Lincoeln Town
Car pad been alleged to have been the cause of any
under hocd fires?

a, No, I was aot.

Q. D; you kpnow where the air suspension
madule is located in connection with the brake
preggure éwitch? Da you know what side of the
vehicle it's on?

A. I believe -- In the -- In the 1332, '983

Toawn Car?

Q. Yes.
A. I believe it's Iin the trunk.
Q. Take &4 loank at altarnatives what we're

going to mark as Exhilbkit 6.

THE COURT REPORTER: 7.

Q. 7
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
(Exhibit Me. 7 marked. )
©¢. 7. Do you have a highlighter? I ask you

to take a lock at ﬁxhibit 7. &And that is a -- Well,
first let's establiah -- is that a plcture of the
under hood '33, '93-Lincnln Town Car?

A. It loocks -- Wall, 1 guags I don't 3ee
where it says the Town Car on here. I don't know

that.

AAR COURT REPQRTERS 713 466-9325
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Q. Can you look at it and look at the
orientation of some of the components and see if
that loocks to you like it is that? I think 1ir may
have got gut off in the photocopying.

A. i guedaa, 1f you wanted - to represent it as
that, I'll -- I'll accept that.

Q. Okay. I have highlighted something.

Would you raad what I have highlighted?

" A. Alr suspenslon compressaor, motor and wvent
golaencid.
2. And that is in the 1%92, '93 Panther

platform; 18 it noc?

A, Yan.

2. Okay. And that is locate on the left side
of the engline; is it neot?

A. That'a -- Yas.

Q. Have you ever heard of anybody alleging
that that ﬂavice chat T havé_highlightud haa baen

;hn cause of under hood fires?

A. oﬁ the '92 '9%3 Town Car?

Q. Yag,

A.. Ho.

¢.  Did you look into that during your

inveasgtigation of under hood Town Car fires in che

Linecoln platform?

ARA COURT REFORTERS 713 465-5%325
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A. No, we did not,
a. Why not?
A. Because what our ohjective wag was to lack

at brake presgure awitch.

Q. dkay. Do you know if anycone else at Ford
lockad inte that component during the investigation?

A, I don't know if they did or not.

Q. Now, on your calendar there's also %
raference to ADS. It'm oa, I think, the 26th of
May, Bullding 5., It says ADS, Bullding 5.

A, Qkay. '

Q. Did that havse anything to do with the
investigakion that you were engaged in in the

Lincoln Town Car?

A. Na, it did not.

Q. Is that involved in a different vehicls
line? |

A. .It ¢ould have bean. Probably was.

Q. And then I sae an antry the previous day,

7:30 £to 8:30, speed control wiring and fusing. Was

'that'inlany way rel:teﬂ to the investigatioen you

were involved in in the speed control?
A That may have been.
¢. Can you kell us what that meeting was

about and what the --
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- AL From the words that are there, it looks
like we were locking At different opportunities for
what we might do with the speead cantrol switch for
the recall.

a. ind did you have a team leader an that?
And if s, whe wag that?

A. A particular leadsr? It would've been --
Agaln., I was.the ovaerall! lead. I think -- I guess
I'd be the lead.

Q. And the purpcse was to look at different
wiring anéd fusing options?

A. That'a what I would read from that.

7. And what other opticns did you look at?

A. With respect to --
Q. I think you talked sabout a ralay with --
A. Well, T think that would be -- that would

|ba conelstent with this meefing.

Q. Did you look-at an in-line Euse?

A. I think that was part of the discussien.
Q. Rel;y_in-fuae. Anything elee?

A. I think there was a look at moving the

wiras Lo some other 1ocntions.

Q. All right. Explain to me what you locked
at there.
A. Well, I think thers was a propcaal, a

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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thought, an idea, basically something that somebady
thought as an idea tﬁat maybe if we took T.I.'s
racommendatlion to move the wire to scmeplace elae,
that that would result in -- that we might be able
to get arnﬁnd the prnhlem-that.we werae having when
laaky ewltches wera causing filres.

2. And T.I. made this recommendation,
according to your reccllection?

A. I don't know whether T.I, made the
recommendaction or if i% was somebody else, Bubt it

turned out --

Q. What was the recommendatien?

A, The recommendation was finding a different
place to -- to locate the wiring for the speesd
conkrel. This would've ended up in a fallure mods

that wa were crying to get away from in thg ocriginal
design of Fhu syetam, 80 the speed control people
were adverse to dolng that. .

Q. I'm not sure I follow that. Explain --
Explain-that.again a little blt. The recommendation

mzde by somebody was to move the wiring from where

it -- You have the diagram -- from where to where?
A. Thars waeg no recommendation to move the
wiring. ©Okay. Somebody said, hey, maybe if we can

find a place that we could chuﬁga something, we

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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<ould do that.

Q. Okay.

F- That was not a faasible thought.

. Okay. Kind of like brainstorming?

A, ﬁrainstarmingh

Q. Ware thers any cother thinge that were

considered by your group ckher than putting in a
relay, putting an in-line fuse and perhape moving
the wir%ng?

A. We coneldered peveral possibilities of
what we could've donse én aliminate the fire with the
defective awitch that had brake fluid in the -- in
the awitch cowmpartment. We wefa not able to make
aﬁy of those cother thinga work, for a varlety of
re;sons. But the bottom line was was that in order
toe protecgt the customera frowm fiées ia their Teown
'‘Cara due to leaky brake swltchea, you know, we

couldn't -- we 'couldn't do that with these n;her

iﬁuan.

Q. Bo you just put in a naw brake switeh,
right?
A. We put ino q_braki ewiliteh thac had been

manufactured after the time frame at which T.I. had
made their manufacturing changes that cthey hada't

told us about. But the data shoﬁld that it looked

AAR COURT REPORTEES 713 466 -39325
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like it would work,
MR. MAYER: Gbkject, nonresponsgive.
MR. FEENEY: Object to your

objection,

Q. Sa you put in new brakas swikch?
A, We puk in new brake switches.
Q. Now:. tell ma what, in your mind, made che

ugse of a fnlay. eomething that wasn't advisable.

A. Pirst of all, the relay in itself was only
a4 Bandald teo -- t¢ what waa going on with the
cireuit., A relay in the recall would've bee appliaed
by many diffaiant peupia acroge the country with a
veristy of unknown results, a lot of opportunities
for mistakea. If would've alac cffered up an
opportunity for the relay to catch fire hecause it
would chen be powered at all timesa; and inside the
relay, 12 volts to ground were even closer together
than they érp iﬁsida 1f brake preassuxe awitch.

0. Anything alae?

A. Thare may have basen some other ldeas that
escape my mind right now.

Q. Now, in the Fimld Review Committee that
you talked about earllier, I think theyae 18 a -- Do
you havﬁ that exhibit in front QE vyou? I think it's

Ho. 5. There i@ a - Thare's a test that waa dene.

) AAMA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9125
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Take a look at Tesﬁ 16, Page 18 of 20. Okay. Do
you s=e that test?

A. Yes,

Q. Okay. The objective, am I read it, is to
tast prapuééd relay circuit; 1s that correct?

A That's corract.

G. Okay. And there's a descripticn of the
reaults of the test: Switch was injected with filve
percant paltwater and tap water scolution placed:in a
propoeed current limiting circuit foxr 48 houra. The
current draw remained constant at 180 milliamps
throughout tha test. Did I read that correctly?

A, That's correct.

Q. Okay., And was thie test something tﬁat
yaﬁ asked to be performed; you, meaning Ford asked

toc be preformed?

AL Yag,
Q.. And who did the teat?
A, I believe thias was probably done by Texas

Instrument.

Q. Do you know one wey or the cther?

A, At this moment I can't tall you that for
sure, but I believe that thare are probably some
other documernte thaﬁ would ahow thisg was done by

TiIi
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Q. And did pecple freom Ford partlelpates in

the test, to your knowledge?

A. T.I. ran thia tast.
Q. And the -- tha test results are idenktified
thers. I won't read them. The -- The teats yielded

a conclusion, did they not?

A, There 1s a conclusion thare.

Q. Okay. The conclusilon was that at .75
wattg, tﬁe maximum power in the proposed circuit
design is not enough power tc cause the awlech
terminal heating suffiélent for ignitien. Did I
read that right?

A. That ies what T.I. concluded.

a. Do vyou hawve any evidence to suggest that's
ncet correct?

A. I don't have any evidence toc suggest that
it is correct?

Q. | Did Ford do any teats to determine whether
that information was accurate?

- A, No, we did not,

e. -Duas Fard no .of anything to suggest the
information ia pot accurate?

A. At this point in time we don't know for
sure whak we ware prnvided.by Texas Insktrument based

gn their =-- tha information that wa know they didn't
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provide us.
ME. MAYER: OQbject, nonreaponsive.

@. Did you -- Did vou ask to see the results
cf the test?

A, fhis ie -- Thile ie what we got from Texasa
Instrument. Thia is what they supply as the
results.

MR. MAYER: Let me juat take a
break --

MR. MANSEKE: .Eure.

MR. MAYER: -- and msay Goodbye.

MR. MANSKE: We'wve been going about
an hour and 15 minutes anyhow.

{Recess taken.)

iMr. Colinge leavesa the depositlon.}

Q. Mr. Porter, as far as you know, the tests
and the reaults and the ¢anc1ugiana dagcribad in
Exhibit 165 [aic.), have thoqu been removed from any
of the ﬁerninnu of ﬁhe 14-D that has been provided

Lo your mansageament?

A. Exhibkhitr 16?
Q. Ho. Tegt 16.
A. Oh, that would be Exhibit S. What was the

gquestion again?

Q. Have you removed Test 16 from the white

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 468-3325
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paper that you ﬁrévided Lo your manazgement?

A I believe this is the moat recent version
of the white paper, so it's gtill there.

Q. Now, one thing you mantioned when, I
think, My, Jolly was aaFing you guestions related to
the amount -- the amount of power -- the limits on
power to make the product safe from ignition, do vyou

recall that general discussion with Mr, Jolly?

A. Vagualy.
¢. Okay. Do you recall that you said that
you didn't know what thHe limit -- what the coerrect

limit would be ko eliminate the possibility of an

lgnicion?

A. What I -- What I know that -- that I can
#ay with that regard is that I don't know the
miﬁimum current reguirsament that would cause a -- a
ewitch that had laaky braks fluid to start fire.

Q. o you -Q_Dn you -= Did you reviaw Exhibit
1 prier to the depoaition he?e?

A. I did laook at 1t, yes.

2 There is -- There is a provision on Page 3

of 20 wﬁere ;hay're explaining what they did in the
test. Aad iﬁ sayB - I'1l read it -- The powar

gupplies were limited to 100 milliamps so that they

may run unattended 24 hours a day with a low riek of

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 465-93325
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| fire. Do you agree with that statemant?
A, Yamg, I do.
@. And that wae scmething that Ford engineers

callad for, corrmct?
' OA. That's correact.

Q. De you knﬁw how the limitlng of the power
BUupply to 100 milliampulnllnwa the dewvice to run 24
houra a day with a low risk of fire? Why does that
happen?

| A. Becausa there would be less pover
available to atart ﬁ fire, oo there would ba a lower
risk of a filre; but it doesn't say that there would
be no risk of a fire.

- Q. Iz that asomething that was -- Ford
suddenly discovered in the year 2000 or ias that
sumsthing Ford knew back in 19917

A. Ia that what?

Q. Power supply is limited te 100 milliamps
so that thay ¢an run wvnattended 24 hours a day with
a low riank of fire. 1Ia thaﬁ anmathiﬁg you Jjust
suddanly discovered or-is that something Ford knew
back in 1951 and ‘827

A. I guass I'm not «- I mean, any time that
there l1s current availab;a-in a circult that is

dissipating power -- I guess I'm still not sure what

AAA COURT REPCRTERE 711 466-5325
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it is you're trying to drive at with vour guestion.

Q. There's nothing unusual about Ehat
staztement. It 18 common knowledges, correct?

A. Well --

0. It wag in 1991, ik ib today. Theres'sa no

myastery abkout it; 1s there, Mx. Porter?
M. FEENEY: $Obiect to form. I don't
avan know what's being asked at this point.

A.. I -- Again, I'm not sure what it ia -- I'm
net aure ﬂhnt the guestion 1s you'rs asking.

Q. Limiting tha-puwef supply te a hundred
milliamps ac somesthing can run unattended for 24
hours & day with low risk of fire, that's not
gcmething that Ford suddenly discovered in the year
EUHG;.iE it, Mr. Porter?

A. Wall, it would be lower risk than running
it st 2040 milliamps, right.

Q. JRight. And a lowar risk than running it
;t a8 higher power, correct?

A. But bhigher risek than running 1t at zerg.

0. Do you know which of the Fcrd_engineers
worked on thia_tant?_

A. Stave Reimers.

@. ~Did you -- Were you present when the test

wase run?v
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A. I wag -- I vigsired the teegt from time to

time.

Q. And did he consult with putting a hundred

milliamp limitc on the test?

a. Yes.

Q. Did you agree with him?

A. Yen.

0. Why?

A.  Because wa needed t¢ have gome current for
the test -- or we thought we needed mome current for

-

the test to run.

Q. Why did you limit 1t to a hundred

milliamps, Mr. Porter?

A. Becauge if we limited it at 15 ampa, we --

we were afraid that it would start a fire.

a. Thank you. I did have a questien about

one of graphs on that,aame.gxhib;t._

MS. WEINER: 18 this Exhibir 17?
MRE. MAYER: Yes.

Q. Exhibit 1, 1f you'd take a lock at Fage 7

of 20, my understanding af rha limit te a hundrad

milliampe would be the 1.00E + 05 lina on the

left-hand =side of the graph; 1s that correct? Havs

I read that right?

A, Let me work this cut.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5325 )
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- 0. Okay.
aA. That's true,
Q. Okay. Can you explain to us why then on

this graph we have one of the devises being measured
ac a higheé -- higher than a hundread milliamps?

A. I balievae, at periods of time during Lthe
teat, when the power supply would limit it a hundred
milliamﬁa; when Edmahudy was there to attend it,
they would allow mere curxent to flew. And that
would've been one of those times.

Q. o the hundred milliamp limit was only
placed on tha device when it ﬁaa unattended?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. When peoples were in attendance they

took that limit off?

A Yed.

Q. Am tar as you undarstand?

A AB far aw I understand.

2. Can you show me where in the fepurt LE

sdys that, in the test?

A It deepn't unless -~ X mean, I --
Q. is there mome rasson why it was left out?
A. That Was not deemsd a piece of information

that goes uaaful.

Q. Did you make that decision?

AAA COURT REDPORTERS 713 4£6-%325
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A Ne.

Q. Whe didz?

A. Bteve,

Q. All right. Thank you. bid -- Did you pay

this company, Hl-83tat, £o run these tests?

A. No, we didn't.
2. Why not?
A, Because they're interested in the

business.

Q- 30 there was nNo -- N -- 1o payment, no
inveicing, no payment for those tasta?

A. Not for those tests, mno.

Q. Dié¢ they get any coumpensaticon for working
and doing these tests?

A We did buy seme switches from them that
they ware compensated for.

0, Hhaﬁ kind of switches did you buy?

A. Thay were the pressura type switches.

Q. For instillaﬁinn in what vahlcles?

A. It was for general atudy. It was not for
any particular vshicle:

Q. Is there soma reason why they just didn't
invoice you for the testa?

A, They ﬁara intaraestaed in the business.

Q. S0 in lieu of invelecing you for the test,

AAA CQURT REFPORTERS 713 466-9325
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you just bought some sample parte from them?
A. The -- I guess that would be a way of

locking at it, yes.

[ Q. Ie that typlcally how Ford doea business?
A, Ford doey busipess in many different wayas.
Q. Aas I undarstand your teatimony earliar ko

Mr. Jolly that Ford has a -- determined a root cauze

and that root cause is thakt the brake fluid has
leukad.phrough the Kapton1=ual, when did Ford come
to tﬁat conclusion?

A. After reviewing decumentation thag T.I.
provided on a pravious :ané.

@, And was that -- Qkay. Was thak done in
the year 20007

A. I beliave it was in 1999,

Q. Do you know when -- what documents you

reviewad that assisted you 1in coming to that

concluslon?
A. Texas Instruments Highlights was the
primafy contributor to that. Other internal

dacpmants that T.I. proviﬁ=d would also show that
T.I. waa coencerned ahaut that themselvea.

Q. And what aiactlf in tﬁe Texas Instruments
documents allowad Ford toa say that ths root cause

was leaking -- brake fluid leaking through the

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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Rgptcn?

A, It waa a document that T.I. sent Lo me
with regpect to a possible scenarios of the Ford --
or that could cause the diaphragm to leak and they
liated a c;ﬁpla of those scenatios in their
documant. What we recailved in the document
productioh werse previcus copies of that, and which
commen apeclfically ldentlfying those situations
that were common wicth the Tennesasee switch were
deletead from the memo that was presented to us. .So
it became clear that T:I. understood that the
preblem we were looking at was, in fact, something
that they had sxperienced.

. Okay. I nm=ed to explore that with you a
liktle bit because I'm not sure I fallawed it =ll.
Theee are documents that you geot acmetime in 1989 in
dincuverg?_.

A. Yea.

0. And how did they relate to the Msuphis

ewltch?

aA. What the documents waa duing was
describing te Ford varlous modes that the -- that

the diaphragm could falil. One of those modes was

identified as baing the same ag observed in the

|Tennessea awiteh. That lina was removed from the
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document that was presentad to us.

Q- S50 you saw two veralons of the sams
document?
A. Yey.

Z. hil right. One ofF them had same as the
Tenneasse awitkch removed?

A Yes,

Q- And thas ctﬁer cna was identical sxcept
that plirase was centained in 1e?

A. That's correct.

Q. Cckay. Is thare anything eles# that you saw
that convinced you that the root cause for this
recall was a leaking diaphragm -- leaking Kapton
other than that?

A, The Highlighta that T.I. presented as part
of their documant production hand a running
commentary thraﬁgh 1982 about lgaking Kapton. They
identifiad'tha praaﬁure and ¢rimping process was one
poesibility of cauming leaking diaphragm. They also
indicated that tha gasket seal being misplaced,
which was continued on into August of 1592, was also
a facror in rsducing the life of the Kapton. In
addition to tﬁat, they identified other |
manufacturing process problems that they had never

identified to Ford, including the braking spring arm
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that was observed during their impulsé testing alsa.

c. o the documents that you're referring ko,
the Highlights, those are documents that you
reviewed and thay indicated to you that there were
problems with F.I.'s production of the switch during
the time pariocd inveolved?

A. Yes.

Q. And those were proklems that -- It's your
pesltion that Ford was unaware.nf it until such time

as you raviewed them --

A. And, in faect --
Q. -~ 18 that right?
A. In fFact, the documentes identified that

they did not tell Ford in aome cages of those
incidents.

_E. Thess were problems of Ehe migplaced
gagket, thpae you are thinga that you ¢laim that
Ford was unaware of until the tima that yeu raviewed
those Chingas? -

a. f not only claimeﬁ that, T.,I. also
provided Ford during the inveatigation a_list of
changea that -- that had oceurred, upon cur reguest,
of with a praducti&n changes had happaned. What
their list showed was nething during the 1592 time

frame, that there ware any piaduqtion changeg
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changing -~ happening. But, in fact, the Highlights
aay that there were cﬂangpn to the production
proceas. So in 1999 they were withholding that
information from us when specifically asked.

Q. ﬁid you ask people at Ford whether they
had discussad with Texas Insetruments any of the

ipguae that you helieve you werea Iearning for the

|first time in 19997

A.  Ysmsa.

Q. - Who did you talk at Ford to ses if anyone
had discussed that witﬁ Ford at the rtime it
occcurred?

A. Bruige Pease.

Q. Anybody elae?

A, Gary Klingler. Those are two names that
come to mind rTight now.

Q. Thomse waera two Individuales that were

arcund during the 1551, '%2 time framas --

A. Yes.

Q. .- right?' Bacauge you weren't in chat
poaltion?

A. That's cor:uct?

Q. Ckay. 8o yauldnn't know firethand whether

{anyone from Texas Instruments discussad those lsaues

with Pard because you weare told they were notj; and
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'that's based on informatien you got from Pease and

Klingler?
A. And Texas Instcrument.
Q. Okay. And who at Taxaa Instruments told

you that tﬁay were not digclosed?

A. The Highlights.
Q. Othear than your reading of the documents.
I'm trylng to find, was there any -- Did you aak

anybady_at Texas Instruments, hey, did you all
dlscuss this with anyh?dy at Ford; and if so, who?

A, No, I have not.

Q. Have you sver asked that to this day?

MR . FEE#EY: How, walt a minute.
Time ouﬁ. I mean, how is he going to deo that in the
middle of litigation?

Q. Eave you aver aaked that to this day,

Mr. Porter, from anybedy from Texas Inatruménts?
anﬁ you asked that qu=sti§;%

A, By racbmmendatiun of my counsel, I have
not had contact with paople from T.I. except in
their prasanca..

Q. And ﬁhat exactly did Mr. Pease tell you?

A. Mr. Peaass did nﬁt remember a lot about
what was going on did during that period of time.

g. What exactly d4id Mr. XKlingler tell you?
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A Mr. Klingler sald¢ T.I. never informed of
him of any of these iésues.

Q. I thought you told me that -- Well, I
don't think I coverad this. whén is the last time
You spoke wlth Mr. Klinglar?

a. The laat time I epoke with Mr. Klingler
was several monthes ago.

o. SEeveral monthe age. So tada# ieg Wovember,
Summer or after the summer?

A. I -- It woulq've been possibly even before
the summer., I don't know when it waa.

Q. All right. Did you c¢all him or he called

you?
. A We had a meeting over at his office.

Q. And where was that mestlng, siri
A, That was in Plymouth, I think.
Q.  Plymouth where?
A. Hiéhignn.
Q. #nd who was in attendance at that meeting?
A

’ Let's sae_. I think I was thare.
Mr. Manske was also there.

Q. Mr. Manwke, the lawyﬁr hare thak's
raprsﬂﬁnting you in thia ﬁepusttion?

A. Yes.

Q. Ckay. Wasg Mr. Feenay there?

o AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-2325
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A. No, he was not.

Q. Anybody elae?

A. I do not believe go.

Q. Okay. Give me the hieraxrchy. Did Gary

Klingler work Bruce Pease or wasd it tha other way

around or?

F. They were pot in the same organization.

Q. Okay. They ware both in different
divieionsa?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And was that the first time you had

mat with Mr. Klinglar?

A. No. I had had some discussions before
that over the phone.

B When -- When is the firast time yeu started

talking with Mr. Xlingler?

A. It would've bmen aometime in_1999.

0. Did you talk with Mr. Klingler during the
investifation prior to May of 1959 when the recall

was lagued?

A. Yes, I did.

g. Okay. And where was ha wnrkihg atr the
tima?

A. He was worklng in what hescame Vistecn

Visteon. Actually, I think that organization's
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already been identified then.

Q. Okay. And why did you contact

Mr. Klingler?

A. Eecause I knaw that he wag invelved with
the speed .- apead control sygtem.

Q. -~ How did you know that?

A, From -- Agptually, I remembered hack in

1992, that wae the group that ha was the esaction

|avupervisaer for.

a. S0 you tracked him down over at Vistean

and you ~- and you telephoned him?

A. Yes.
0. Okay. Was 1t before or after the recall?
A, This was before the recall.
- 0. What did you ask him?
A. I askad him 1f he could work with us cn

the team that was investigating thes NHTSA system.

0. Qkay. And did he @grte to do 807

A. He lndicated it Hnﬁld be better to use one
of the pesople who were prasantly working on the
apeea control sfutam.

Q. Okay. In qhhe; wnras, sdmehndy working on
the -- whatever, the 2000 epeed control system or
whatever it wag under?

A. Yea,

ARA CUOURT REPORTERS T13 468-9325
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Q. S0 he declined. And who did he send in
his place? |

a. Well, I think ha gave me the name of Lthe
pecple over at the other ayatem. The perscn whao
eventuallyﬁreprusented spaed Euntrul wae Fred EKohl.

Q. And had Mr. Kohl been around in the 1951,
192 time pericd working with Texas Instcrumenta?

A. I don'kt know that he had besn. I don't
think 90

Q. Pid you ask him whether he had worked with
Texas Instruments?

A. I -- I bellava that I did. My impresalon
waa that he wasn't thera then.

. And di4 vou diécuss anything =lse with
Mr. Klingler?

A.. At that time -- Or initially? No.

Q. ¥You just asked him for help and he sald,
I'm not going help, I'll send somehody?

a. That's right.

Q. And did Mr. Rohl aasiat in the

invesatigation?
A. Yeg, he did.
a. And exactly ‘what was Mr. Kohl working on,

ag you uvndersgtood it, other than this investlgation?

What was he doing?
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. A He had responsibility generically for car
gapead control sysgtems.

MR. JOLLY: What?7 Speed -- What

type?
THE WITNESS: Car, A1 nppnsed ko
truck.
MR. JOLLY: ©Oh.
Q. And do you know what car lines he worked
on?

A. My understanding is that he worksd con all
the car lines. ) |

Q. When you say "all" you mean all that are
manufactured by Ford and Lincoln orx does it go to
.M, and Chryslear and --

A. All the Ford car lines.

Q. By the way, io the 1991, *'$2 time frame,
do you know what type of apesd controle systems were
ueed by your cuﬁpetitnra, the Cadillacse, Buicks? Do
yau kaow?

A. They had a variety of different sysatema.
Thera wag gsome -- Well, there ware different kinds.

Q. Were any of them recelving constant power?

A. How do you mean, weres they yeceiving

congtant power?

Q. Well, were any cof them wired the aame or
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Bimilar to the Ford system whaere they had a 15-amp
fusae and direct to the battery?

A. I believe that they all have -- Maybe it
waeg 15, maybe it was 20, but --

Q. Were they continucusly powered 24 hours a
day. seven days a week, Mr. Porter?

A. Thoze systems also ubilizad thé braks
pedal for a deactivatlion, so that would be
cnntinuqunly powered, yes.

Q. So whan you began your investligation inte
the 1981, 'S2 Town Car‘part. iz one pf the things
you did, say, hey, what's ocur competitors deing?
L.et's go ses how they're deoing 1t?

A That was part of it.

0. And who did you gst to assiat you with
that or did you dg that yoursalf?

A. I think that that was one of the questions

that we put to the Vehicle Center peaple. It turned

lout that their eystems were not the sames a® Ford's

averall, so that it was net applicable with what

we're btrying ko do., Agaln, we wers really trying to

focus on the brake presaure switch and what could be

tha defect with that.
Q- I underatand that. How were their systems

different?
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[

A. Their systems in -- generically, I guess,
lnstead cf using a brake pressure sewiktch in the
‘brakse line, they used a redundant switch on the
brake pedal.

Q. %hat'a gimilar toa what Lincoln had used
before 1891, 139272 |

A. No, it's not.

0. What was the type of system that the
Lincoln Town Car used in early '921?

A, Lincoln Town Car used a vacuum dump switch
that was based on the brake pressure.

o, cﬁn vou explain just briefly how that
would work?

A. The -- Again, I'm not -- ﬁell, mayhe not
again. But for the brake premsura systam pricr to
1392, the '92 model year, I really didmn't go into a
deep dive nf that, The -- The gwitch method that
was used would -- Or the system for energizing the
eystem was & nonelectrical syatem. 8o it was a
differant typs of awitch.

Q. And when Ford decided tec go from that
systam to an elacfriqnl system that was energized
a2ll the time, what studles did Ford make to
datarmine whather thies system would be cna that they

thought would be compatible with real! life under
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heod envirconmeant?

A. Specifically, you'd have to ask Gary
Klingler what kthey di¢. BRut they did do a lot of
anzlysis of the competitive vehicles., They alse did
standards ﬁracticea, the FMEA=z.and --

g. Was that material available to yéu during

your inteatigntian, I guess, is what I'm trying Lo

get at?
A.  Not all of 1it, no.
. Dkay. Becausde T have not seen a lot of

studies that indicate what Ford studied to move from
Ehe vacuum ayatem to the electrical system. [id you
look at that material in your inveatigation?

A. I -- Noe. No, we did not. That_wusn't --
That wasn't the isaue. The lssue really was the
brake pressure awitch,

. All right. But this was a new spesed
control afntem, wAd it not?

A. PFor the '931 vehicle it was a new epeed
contrnl Bystem, yead.

G. All right. and did you have somegne on
your team g; and try to a;udy tha old myatem %o
compare te the new ayatem_tu sas what, perhapa, some
of the differences may ba-thaﬁ may be one

explanations of the anomalies?

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 4465-9325 _
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A, Afrer wa found out that it was a wacuum

gewitch in the previous, it was no longsr relevant.

a. Why ims that?
A. Becaugde it was not the same system.
Q. Ckay. 1 interrupteﬂ You, You were

tmlling ma zbout you talked with Mr. Klingler, you
located him at Visteon scmetime in '$9 before the

recall and he declines, but seat you Fred Kohl to

work wi;h vour peopla?

A, That's correat.

Q. And did you have any other meatings o
discuseione with Mr. Klingler between that initial
call where you got Fred Kohl and the meeting you had
with Jeff Manske?

- A, That -- That was probably the only
meeting. There may have been a phone call as far as
setting up the meeting wicrh Mr. Manske.

Q. Okay. Can you ruc;ll.anf gubgtantive
information you diacussad with Mr. EKlingler?

A. Whean?

0. Priar to tha -meeting you had with
Mr. Manske.

A. Ko.

0. Did you aak Mr. Klingler any particular

guestions about Byatem deslgn and who was
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respondible for designing the speaﬁ control system
during this time frame?

A. No, we did not. We depended on Mr. Kohl
to provide that information.

Q. Aﬁd did Mr. Kohl! work with your team
through the investigation?

a. Yes, he did.

Q. Wera there others from Viasteon that worked
aleng with him, or to your knowledge, wags he the
only cone?

A. I believe theére were cther individuals
that -- that work in his group at Viateon. 1 den't
know exactly what thelr Iinvelvement would've been.

Q. Now, did Mr. Xlingler tell you that he did
hava a goed reccllection of this time period?

A. Yaa, he did.

2. okay. And what did he tell you that he

recalled about it?

A. With -- With reapect to what?.
Q. Aoy of the guestions you asked him.
A What -- What he was surprlszed, was the

number of problems that T.1. had identified in theilr
ﬁrnaasa from the Highlights.
Q. okay.

A. He was eurprxised that the failures that
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kthey were experiencing, he was surprised that --

that these igsues hadn't besn brought up before.

2. So you showed him the Highlighta Ehat ¥You
had gotten and asked him to reviesw them?

A. Yes.

.Q. And then you talked about whether he was
aware of any of them --

A That's correct.

o -- stuff contained in the Eighlights?

A. That'sa correct.

o id you ask him whether he knew whether
Eruce Pease had then discusead any of thase items
with the T.I.7

A, I didn;t agk him that, no.

2. And did you have a aimilar type meeﬁing
with Mr. Pease or he did not recall the events?

A. He didn't recall the events.

Q. All right. And are there particular
events that you recall discussing with Mr. EKlingler
that he explained ke you that he was not aware of?

A I gueas, in wmpecificse, ; can't -- I can't
identify those. He knew that there was a problem
with the -- with the 1ife on tha -- on the switch,

but he waan't aware of what -- what exactly thosze

probleams were.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Rcad, No. 3631, Houston, Texas 77065




19

il

12

13

14

.15

i¢

17

lg

19

20
21
22
23
24

25

2113

Q. Okay. When you say he knew there was a
problem with the life pn the swikch, what was he

aware of in terms cf a problem?

A, He knew that thersa was alert that had been
writtan.
g, And that's the alert that I cthink vyou

talked abgut with Ma. Weiner?

A, That's corresct.

Q. Was ha aware of anything other than that,
rhat the alert was issued and there was some --

A. There -- There were sgome other issues that
he talked, but I don't recall what those are off
the --

0. Would he have been thelﬁarsan regponaible
for reviewing tha materials Texas Instruments sent
and approving the alezt?

A. I don't know if he would've been or not.

Q. In your investigation, were you able to
find ouk whe at Pord had worked with Texasa
Instruments during the alert that waas issued in
early 1592.un this preblem?

A, I think that would be listed on the alert.

Q. I'm asking you something different. BRid

you, in the investigation, go to that person and

.apcak to them and =may, we think there is the bagls
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|of a recall based pon this alert, we want to talk to

you about, what do you remember about it?

A. Okay. The person who ilnitiatced the alert
wag Bruce Peaase.

O. ékay.

A Okay. He didn't remember that. The
issues that wa had are not with the alert, butr the
parta that were bullt after the alezrt axplirad.

Q. S0 aB I understand it, Ford ia -- Ford's
position is that sume_uwitchas provided after the
alert, Ford belisves, were not manufactured properly
and have Kapton that leaks?

A The information that we have on the
vahicle fires that are shown in the 14-D point to
the parts built off the AMI sysatem that were built
after the alert are the primary parts causing the
Elres becausda ﬁf laaky FKapton.

Q. ' And you talked to Bruce -Fease about it
during tha.invaatigatian, but he had wvery little
recellecticon.

A. He had very little recollection.

Q. All right. And what did Klingler say

about -1t other than what you've told me?

A. ‘Basically, what -- what we've gpoken

already.
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0. How long did you and Mr. Manske mest with

Mr. Klingler?

A. I think it was about an hour.

. Hhat.uther topice did you discuss?

A. That was the only tople that we discussed.
c. Did you ask Mr. Klinglar if he knew

Mr. Qffiler, the pmrson who wrote many of the

Highlightsa?
A. I don't recall if we did.
0. Did you ask Mr. Klingler 1f he ever apcka

with Mr., Offiler during this time frame?

a. I don't recall whether wa did.

@. 5o it's your testimony, you didn't ask the
dquestiocn or you don't remember?

A. I don't remembar.

Q. Okay. Did you diacuass with Mr. Klingler
who ar Texas Instruments he dealt with during this
tima perid&?

A, As we're discusasing this, I -- I
remembered that being something that was discuased,
yeasy, |

Q. Okay. And who did he say that he dealt
with thart hﬁ could recall?

A. Wall, what I recall him resalling, I think

he mentioned Joe Shook as the ealesa engineesr. I

ARA COURT REPORTERES 713 466-9325
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think he mentioned Charlie Douglas as a possibility.

I think he menticned Marcus Sullivan ap aemebody

that he dealt with. I -- That's all I remamber
that -- that he mentione=d at that time,

g. And -- And I don't recall. I apologize.
Did he -- Did he say -- Scrateh that. Okay. Did

vyou guys aak Mr. Klingler to raview the 14-D that

you had provided your management?

A. He, we did not.

Q. Is there some reason why you didn't give
him that? | -

A, It was not something for him to raview.

0. Did Mr. Klingler ask you what teats Ford

had done on awitchea that had been elther returned
from the £field or came in through Lthea racallf

A Neo,

Q- New, as I understoad yvour cestimony
earlier today, you said that_T.I. did all of the

tests involving brake fluid and the switchea. am

I ~-.Did I hear that right or d4id I hear that wrong?

A I'm not -- I.guesas I -=-

Dl Let me ask it another way.

A. Okay.

Q. It's true, isn't it, during the

investigation, Ford tested switches with brake fluid §
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;n them to see if they could get ignition? Ford did
the teats.;hEmEelvea at Ford?

A. Wo, Faoard did not de that,

0. Okay. You're ndt aware that anyone at
Ford did that? |

A. I'm not aware that during the
invesatigaticn that Ferd did any active tesats to --
or any long-term active tests te atart ignition. I
do believe that there were some tests that were run
to identify what the electricity effect would be of
the brake fluid in -- on the electrical components
af the awitch. But those tests were not actually
run with the intent of cavelng an igniticn.

Q. Did Ford 4o gome teate at its proving
gritund on vehicles sutficted with a relay?

A, There was one vehicle that was cutfitted
with a.relgy.

Q. Was that testing done at the -- I think

|it'a Forxd Frnﬁing Grounde. Is that what you call

it?

A. It may have besan proving ground, it may
have been on city atreats.

2. Whe gave the insgtructions to ha;e that
testc done?

A. Test ia really a -- a broad word, or maybe

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-83125
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|too btight of word for what was -- The system was

inatalled intec a vehicle and was run and reviewad,

Q. And who gave the instructlons te do it?

A. The inatruction te do it, it was probably
an agreement by the team of me being the lead of
that. The methadology of hew it was going to be
installed waa probakbly scme of the pecple working on
the team.

Q. -Did you have scmebaody in particular that
wag involved Iin thisz tept, Mr. Reimers or --

A. I think Mr. Riemera nrobably waa
particularly involved with that.

Q. Okay. What other documente did you show
Mr. Klingler other than the T.I., the Highlights?

Tooa, I'm hot sure what other documents ware
shown. I think the Highlights were the primary area
of discusaion,.

Q. Dig yvou show him any of tha ~- the reports
en vehicle fires that had hesn received by sither
Ford ar NHTEA?

A. No, we did not.

Q. Was he aware that there was an
investigation engoing?

A. I had indicated that to himn.

Q. And did Mr. EKlinglerxr ask Ec sae any

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 465-9335
9597 Joneas Rcad, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77085

ERO2-E25-A 12448




19
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
1%
20
21
22
é3
24

2%

215

material from you?

A. I guess, yolb know, we were -- wa were
showing him the material that wa had.

Q. I mean, was there spmething you didn't
bring? 1 ﬁean, from what I underetand, all you
showed him wza ths Highlights Erom Texas

Inatruments; i8 that right?

A. There may habe bheen other informaticn, but
that's --

Q. You gan't recall any?

A. I don't recall any.

Q. Ckay. What I'm amking ims a different

question, Did he eay, well, what about your white

paper, yYour 14-D or what about -- Did he ask for
anything.
A, No, he didn't.,

Q. And what did you ask Mr. Klingler to do at
tha conclusion ¢f-the meeting, if any? |

a. I gumss, what we ware asked .- what we
ware locking for was =-- was coafirmation that what
wae were raﬁﬂing in the Eighlighta waes eomething that
wag really gniﬁg on at the timg.

Q. ﬁkay. And.what did Mr. Klingler say in
that regard?

a. Well, he -- he had =said thac the

AAA COURT REPORTERS 712 486&-9325
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information that the Highlighta indicated was news

te him, that he hadn't been infermed of many of
these igsues that T.I. wase esxperlencing, even as
the -- the speed contrel switeh was going into
production. |

Q. and did ~- Was he able to articulate wﬁich
of the issues he believed he had not been informed
about?

A. Farticularly, the ilmpulse teat probleﬁs
that théy were having.

. And the impulse testing, that -- the
material that led up tec the alart?

A, and afterwards.

Q. What is the impulse E:sting data that
yvou're referring to after the alert éas igguad?

A. In August of 'Eﬁ thE.Highlights identified
that -- that misplacement of tha gasket seal led to
reduction in life of the -- the Kapton in 1lmpulsa
casting. BSo that means there had to have been some
failures in impulwe testing that had not been
identifiaed to us.praviqusly.

Q. Can you explaip from the diagram where
that gaskek 1s lncatﬁd?

A I'm not sure --

. Here's a highlighter. Why don't you

ARA COURT REFORTERS 713 466-9325
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highlight the gasket on theres for us.

A. I beliave that the gasket that they are
raferring to -- only beacause it's in contact with
the Kapton -- i the -- im the =mall gzaker betwaen

tha hax puft and  the Kapton.

Q. Okay.

a. It may., in fact, have been scﬁething else,
But it was gquite clear in the Highlight that it had
a negutiye effect on the life of the Kapton. '

Q. Would you pasa tha exhibit back so I can
sae where you highlighted 1t?

A, (Witnesas cémpliea.l

MR. MAYER: 0OQkay. For the record,
Exhibit 2 has some highlighting marks on it placed
by  the witneas that refers to the gasket that he was
previously diacussing.

Q. Can you explain, My. Porter, how tha
gasket bejng misplaced thare would result in -- i=s
it decreassd Kapton life? Ia that --

a. Decreased Kapton life 1a the problem that
they idantified in the Highlight, They did not
explain hﬁw that wuuid happen.

| Q. Has Ford done any teaks to try to
determine whether cor not a gasket that is misplaced

in the arﬁa that you have highlighted would result

AARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3325 -
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in decreased Kapton life?
A. Ford would be unable Lo run such a test.
Q. Ckay. ©Did -- When Ford -- Do ycﬁ know how
Lhe reduﬁed Kapton life would come about from a

gasket beiﬁg misplaced --

A. Ho, I don't.
Q. -- ag gppcsed to just a straight leak?
A. I -- What was indicated in thea Highlight

asg -+~ aq-the reduced life of the Kapton would be
leak that would allow brake fluid into the switch
cavity.

o. I mean, |t seems toc me that 1f the gasket
is misplaced, you're not going to have a very good
s2al and you would have scome leaking. Iz that the
way you interpreted the document?

A, What -- What tha Highlight saye ias that
the test equipment that T.I. had in place for -- for
lcoking at tha gaskat placemant zould only datect
gIOEN plncumsﬁtu of the gasket and that small
placaments‘-— miaplacements of the gaaket that were
being obeserved regulted in a percentage of Raptcons
with reduced life. _

Q. knﬁ did Ford aee any type ¢f unusual
warranty zeturn in the period fecllowing Aprii of

1392 when this alleged misplaced gasket was to have

AAA COURT REPCRTERS 713 466-9325
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oCcrcurrad?

A. The alleged misplacement of the gasket
cccurraed from the beginning of preduction at the AMI
device untll sometime just prior to August of 1992,
And I waul& have to losk at the data, thea warranty
data, 28 diacuased befcre, te tell you if there was
gomething unusual about it.

Q. 80 1f there was an unusual return of
switchaq to Ford dealerse following thabt tim= pariod,
that would be one indicatien that the misplaced
gasket wag, in factk, a-prublemf

A. That would he.

c. Okay.

A, However, what we do have is an occurrence
of fires that do ceincide w;th that time periecd.

Q. Fofd's poaition is, the occurrence of
fires that it's seeing on the basla of this recall
coimcide with the misplacad gask;t reafarance that

they see in the Highlightws?

A. ‘That 1s cne of the possibilitiens.

Q. How is that -- Explain how that iﬁ related
to it.

A, How the? are ralated?

d. Ok-huh.

A. Freguency of firea in the raecalled

AAA COURT REPORTERE 713 466-9325
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vehicle -- Or the frequency of firas declined from
;arly 19%2 until the end of -- Or aectually -- Yeah,
from early 1992 untll the end of 1992.  Sa if there
wag a changé to the process that would £fix the
gasket pl;éement. that would result in the fall-off
that we saw.

Q. Okay. Anvthing slea?

A. Agailn, there was continucus talk irn the
Highligh;a regarding crimp pressure of the system
and that there was a concern about the robustness of
the switch to that progeas; and that also was
throughout the 1992 time frame. So iflthere were
changss being made to that process, baaaed on those
comments, that would also be reflected -- or the
fires would also cﬁme about from that.

a. 20 aa I understand the line, what you'wve
determined from looking at the Highlights are, that
you do have a root cauea; and that root cause iF
leakling Kapton; it's not based on any additional
tests that were run. Aam I right about that?

A. It's based on the information provided toc

ud by Texar Instrumant.

Q- In the material in these Highlighta?
aA. That's correct,
Q. All right. And so -- Now, have you

AAA CDURT REFORTERS 713 4E§-9335
4597 Jones Road, Neo. 3631, Houston, Texas 77085
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discugsed the -- the cracked Kapton thgt has been
observed by Ford or Ford enginesrs? Have you
discussad thgt with anyone from Du Pont?

A, I believe that there were some

repressentactives from Du Pont that have come to Ford

toc diggugas thatk.

g. And do you know who those represmentatives
are?

A I don't recall the person's name.

G. Did you meet with them, Mr. Porter?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Do you recall %ppraximately when you met

with them?

A, Thare were two occagions. Ona time was
with Texas Instrument. Thexre was a time prior to
that. Again, it was after the recall, buk not --
back 1in that cime frame.

Q. Eﬁd.haa -- Doea John Slater, does that
nhmé ring a bkall to you?

A. That sounde like the guy.

Q. And do you recall that Mr. Slater mat with

vou at Ford at any particular point where Texas

Instruments wasn't pregent?

A. Yap, There was cns time.

a. And do you recall whan that trip occurred?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-959325
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|

A. That waes the one that was after the
recall. Again, I'm not exactly sure what the date
was on that.

Q. And what information did you share with

Mr, -- I méan -- I'm sorry -- Mr. Slater?
A. We showed him tha pieces of Kapton that
had been -- come back from parte during the

investigation that he looked at under 2 microscope.

Q. Okay. And did you ask Mr. Slater what he
thought the mechaniam was by which the Kapton had
falled>

A. I don't recall the -~ any subatantive
discussion. Again, it was a scomewhat contenticus
meeting.

Q. Ckay. Explain that to me. What gave you
the impression that it was a conteanticus mesting?

A There was a Du Pont lawyer there.

QT 1 maaﬁ* I've been at meetings with you
that wasn't ¢ohtentiaus; ¥hat made you say that it
was -~

A: We don't diegues a.lut aheut what's going
on with the preduct ﬁuring those meetings either.

Q- What about tha measbting waa contentiona?

A. Just -~ Just the fact that there was not

going to be an axchange of information; that he

ARA COURT REPCRTERS 713 48&6-93125
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?aan't going to téll ug what his cpinions were.
Q. Okay. Besides you and Mr, Slater, who
elae was prEaenF, and the lawyer for Du Pont?
A, Thare was a Du Pont lawyer. I think,
actually, ﬁr. Mangke was present for part of that

and an engineer from Central Laboratories.

Q. By the name ogf¥
a. Steva LaRouchs.
Q. Any -- Anybody else that you can recall at

the meeting?

A. That's all I'racall;

Q. Okay. 80 you were there, a Ford lawyer
wage there, Ford enginaer was thera, Mr. Slater was

Lhere and Mr. Slater's and Du Pont's lawysr was

there?
A. Correct.
Q. Do you know if Mr. Slater worka for

Du Pont or not?

A, I balieve that ha's a conuulﬁnnt for Du
Pont.

0. And 4did -- &id Ford at this meeting ask
Mr. Slater what he had concluded about the mechanism
for falled Kapten that hg had ocbeerved?

A. Agaln, as I said earlier, I thinﬁ it was

basically the same question; that we didun't get that

abld COURT REPORTERA 713 466-9325
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information.

Q. Ckay. That'a part of the contentious
agpect?

A. Yea.

Q- ﬁas there anything cther than there

wouldn't be an exchange of information that you
deamed contentlous?

A, There wasa no -- ne soclal issues.

Q- And how many switches did Mr. Slater loock
at when he wae herse?

A. I believe that it was somewhare in the

neighborhood of ten -- or 11 ewltches.

2. And how were those switches ldantified by
Ford?
- A. They had be identified am thay -- as they
came back frgm-thg fiesld. Some of them were

identified with lettersa, soma of them had been
identified with numbers.

Q. All right. And do you kaow how they were
selected, why these and net soma othare? |

A, Well, these were awitches that came back
during the investigation from -- from various

dealershipy that had been identlified as belng in

thermal evenkts.

Q. Qkay. Whan you say, being in thermal

—
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evente, what does that mean? Does that maan a fire

or --
A. A fire would be an extrene thermalIE?Ent.
Q. Okay.
A. éame cf -- Some of them were melted.
Q. Uh-huh.
A, That would also bheen thermzal.

Q. Would it be fair to say that nec one from
Du Pont has indicated to Ford that the cracked
Kapton that they have obaerved is a rasult of
anything other than en& of 1ife?

A. I can't say that they have.

a. And, of course, Ford itself has nokt made a
determination between Kapton that has ended its life
and Kapten that you claim has failed prematuraly to
determine what differencea, if any, exlat? Correct,
alx?

A. frEmaturu death ix death in either caase.
Ilmuln, pramatgraly is an and of life, Premature is
nﬁainst a specificatlon that -- that 1a not being
met. You know, there is -- that's atill an end of
life evant.

MR. MAYER: Object, nonresponaive.
Would you read my guestion back, plaase?

{The reacord waa read aF requested.)

~ AAA COURT REPORTERZ 713 466-%325
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2. Back to my gquestion. Mr. Porter, would
it's be safe to say that Ford has not done its own
investigation, comparing Kapton that has run its
life simply -- because it simply wore out versus
Kapton that Ford believes has failed prematurely to
determine what differences, i1f any, exista ino those
fallure modes? Am I correct on that?

A. That would he 2 teat that Feord would
expect T.I. to run.

ag. All right. 8o the answer is: Ford hasn't

done the teast, right?

a. That ia a test that Ford would expect T.I.
te run.
. I hear you. I'm just -- Ford has not done

that te=t, have they, gir? They haven't dene Lt
yet?

A. Wall, I guegs I'm still net sure what
tests 1t iﬁ.uxactly vou're talking about.

Q. Looking at Kapton that haa failed becauas
it has been cycled tn.ﬁha end of life and locking at
Rapton in switches you beliseve have falled
prematuraly to see i: thare are any differences
bhetwaan that Kaptﬁn fallure?

A, Switches that have been cycled to fail

kefore 500,000 cycles are failing at end of life.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-53145
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) Q. I'm talking abeut switches that we know
have cycled beyond 500,000 and failed. That's what
I'm talking about, Mr. Porter. Have you leooked at
the Kapton of those switches teo --

A, No, we haven't, because there would be no
difference that Ford could necessarily tell between
those,.

Q. Thank you. How many vehlcles, the actual

vehicleas that were alleged to have been in car

fires, have you, Fred Portar personally lookad at?

A. How many vebhicles have I locked at?
Q. Yes; wir. Yeg, sir.
A. Qe .,
a. And which on= wae that?
- A I don't recall the name of the case on

that one.

Q. What state was 1t 1n?

A. Florida.

Q. And do you ramember when you lecked at it¥?
A. It wase in December of 1588.

Q. And what about the car do ycu remember?

What type of car was it?

A. It wam a 1592 Town Car.
Q- And de you remember how many miles it had
on it?®

AAA CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. No, I do not.

C. Do you know how many miles the wvehicle
involved in thias case had on it when the alleged
fire -- I mean -- Yeah -- the fire alleged to have

occurred in the speed control deactivation awitech

ocourred?
| A. I don't koow about this case.

Q. Do you know 1f ir's more than 98,000
miles?

A. I doen't know.

Q. Anyway, back‘to your wvehicle trip to

Florida, who attended that inspectidn with you?

A, A fire in:pecﬁor from Florida.

qQ. Okay. Do you remember the fallow's name
or weman's pame?

A. It was a man. Right now I don't remember
what his name was.

a. And this was -- You 4id thkis in cannaction
with the investigation ypu ware making intc the '91,
192 under hood fires in Lincelns?

a. Yes,

Q- Okay. And how did you know about this
¢ar? I mean, how did you 1ea£n about it?

A, The -- The Office of the Genaral Counsel

had told me that thera wag that vehicle there.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 48&=-932Z5
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Q. When you say 0ffice of General Counsel,

thac'a Ford'as 0ffice of Ganeral Counsel; is that

right?
A. Yeo .
Q. Aﬁd did anyone else from your group here

in Michigan go with vou to inspect the car?
A: No, thay did nok.
Q. And do you remamber approximately when

this was_in 1939872

A, in December.

Q 'And do you recall what city it was in?

A. Cape Canavsral.

Q And wag it & '91 or a '82 Linecoln Town
car?

A. It was a 1592 Town Car.

D; And was the car cﬁmpletuly hurnad.up or

wag it partially burned? Or describe it te us.

A, The engine compartment was hisicnlly
conaumed., It wag a burned car.

Q. And do you racall anything else about Che
vahicle that yvou can tEall us? _

A. All of the plastic components of the brake
prassure switech had been ¢onsumed in the fire.

Q. | Was thers a hrakﬁ pressura awltch on the

vehicle?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9232%
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A. Yos, there wasa.
o. Okay. But e¢nly a portien of it?
A. It wag just the metcal compunanté lefc.

Q. And did -- did you remove ig?

A. ﬁn. we did not.

Q. Did anyone inepect tha switch beyond
viaually inapecting it?

A No.

Q. Did Ford -- Did the Ford fire investigator
tell you that he had investigated what he thought
the cauae of the filre waa?

F Flrat of all, it was not a Ford fire
investlgator,

2. Oh, I'm sorry.

A, I kelieve he was an insurance company
inveatigater. The -- The and -- 0Or the vehicle had
been impounded at T.I.'s regueat and. you know,
we -- we discussed the poesibility of it -- or
what -- what it might've been and I believe he said
that he thought it was the brake presaure switch,

| 0. pid he give you any raasan why?

A. He talked about fire patterns, etcetara;

‘but it'really didn't mean anything to me.

Q. Did it --

A. My primary reason for going was that 1f

_ AAA COURT REPORTERS 711 466-9325
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there wag something available left of that switch,
that T was looking to retrieve it; But again, it's

plastic, it had been totally consumed.

e. And was anyvone from T.I. with you on the
trip?

A. No, they wearen't.

Q- Did you notlfy them that you were going?

A, Yes, I di T.

Q._ And you said that car was impounded in
gome fashion?

A. ft wag -- It was in an small garage.

Q. And your underystanding 1s, T.I. had
regueseted that cthat vehicle he --

A. That's what I understood, yes.

Q. And that's the only wvahicle that you'wve

looked at frnﬁ November of 1398 to the present; 1ls

that corrmct?
A. . That}a corract.

MR, MAYER: 1I'd like to take a little

{ghort bhathroom break if I could.

MR. FEENEY: Sure.,
{Recess taken.)
Q. Okay. Mr. Porter, I want to make sure
I've got everything covearsd. Othar than your

meaeting with Mr. Klingler that you mentioned to us,

AARAA CODRT REFPORTERE 713 466-932%8
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‘have you had any other conversations with him tharc
you have not described here tocday?
A Thera -- There ware probably other

conversations with him, you know, because I don know

that there\waa preparation that -- that was going
on; that he's been asked to -- to be deposed.
0. And hava you talked to him about that?
Aa. I -- Agsain, in the context of -- of

reviewiqg the documents, underatanding how the --
the specification was written ae it's highlighted in
the Highlighta, het's :;nfirming that T.I. had inpukt
into che specification. You knuh, yes, that was
part of the discuseion.

Q. What -- In addition t¢o the Highlights,

what other doccumente have you sent him or have heen

aent to him by counsel for Ford that you're aware

=}

A. i guedas I'm not sure what has been sent to
him-

Q. What did you eend him?

A. Well, agaein, we had the Highlights. I

think that the epecificatien was -- wase one of the

items. We alao had a copy of a specification
‘that -- that T.I. had marked up prior to. We
also -- Oh, we alese talked about scme tmpting that

AAA COURT REPORTERE 7113 455-5%25
§537 Jonea Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77085

12408




10
11
12

i3

1lg

15
l1&
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

237

| Gary had requestead of ihe -- gf Ehe switch. There
wag a concern in gystem that if the wire between the
switch and the speed control were to short out, that
the full 15 amps from the fuse might be run through
that awitcﬂ. And sc he asked T.I. to run testing to
confirm that the awitch weould be able to survive
that and they wera able En exceed that much greater
than the 15 ampas; it would ge teo 30 amps.

¢. Is there -- Is there written test results
on that that you sant him?

A. That -- Actuilly. I believe that
informaction 1a i1ncluded in the Highlights.

Q. B0 that'e tha date of the Highlights.
What I'm trying te find ocut ia, other than the
apecifications which you sent him and some marked up

gpecificatliona, have you sent him any octher

documenta?
A, I -- You know, the documenta that he has
really could be any of the doacuments that -- that

T.I. produced,

Q. Whoae jecb wae 1t to get him the material
that you wanted him ﬁn lecaok at? Was that your job
or Mr. Hanakels?

A. I think I -- [ provided him with the firat

plecesa of information and that I had a copy of the
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Highlights. Theres may have been some other
documents that were subseguently necessary. I'm not

gure whlch legal office would've handled thac.

Q. Are you asaying you're not sure which legal
cffica?

A. I belleve it would've been Mr. Manske.

Q. The only other legal office tchat I know is
invalvad in this case 13 Mr. Faeney''s ogffice. Ia

that rightv

A. Well, at -- at Ford, there'ms also our
in-house lawyers. But-it wouldfve baen Mr. Manske.
Q. When you gave Mr. Klingler the Highlights

that you'va mentionad in this depositien, did you
give him all 300 pages of those Highlights? I Ennw
thers ware over 306 paAges.

A. Ie that how many it ia?

Q. Uhmhuh,-

A. ih did seem like it was a couple of inchea
thick. _

Q. Did you give him all of them or you gave
hin selected cherxy picks of tham?

A. I belliave I gave hin the whole -- the
whnl; atack. |

z. | Aﬁd the gpecifications that weare asent to

him, the original specification fer tha wehicle, or
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the component as well as the ﬁarkad up
specification, did you have possession of those?
Are thoge the documenks you had that you had looked
ac?

a. Those are documsnts that I had locked at
that had been alasc produced by Texaa Instrumenkt.

G. And when &id yeou sent him these?P Was that
in 20007 Was that in 19997

A, I think it was -- I'm not sure of the
exact date. It gould’'ve bean 15%%% or early 2000.

c. But you've ohly had one face-to-face
meeting with him?

A. #ll that I remember specifically was one
face-to-face meeting. There may have been others
that -- that I don't recall cff the teop of my head.
1 know that, you know, his job has esince taken him
to Japan and I have not had a face-to-face meeting
with Lhim since than; so this would've happened
bafore that meating.

Q. whao doeq.hn work for? Doaea he still work
for Viateon?

A, He worke fﬁr Viatecon.

Q. Okay. Even though he's in Japan, he's
gtill with them?

A Thakt's right.
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Q. Has Mr. Klingler agreed to assist Ford in

this litigation?

a. I believe that he haa.

0. Did he -- Did you ask him to that?
A. No, I did not.

0. De you knew who did?

It would've been one of the lawyers. I'm

e

not sure who it would be.

a. And does Ford have any relationship with
viatannianymare, ownership interest?

A. Pord Motor Company, I gueas I really don'k
know. That's -- You know, I -- the corporate
dealinga of how that works, I'm not sure how thart
would have baan.

Q. Well, do you have & layman's underatanding
cf what the relationship is?

A. ‘Hall, the layman's understanding 1s that
there'wﬁre'issﬁes of Visteon atock issued to
stockhalderse. How many stocks of Ford -- Ford Motor
Company owned and therefore issued sharea of Vistecn
to themwelves, I don't know Lif thers were any or
what. |

Q. Angd I apnlﬁgiza iflI'?e asked vou this.
When did Pord spin off the Visteon division?

A. 1 baliave -~ I racell it was eometime this
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year, in 2000, but that would probably be documented

in the newspapers pretty well.

Q. S0 until that time Mr. Klingler was a Ford
employee?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. Now, I want to focus on -- We

talked about. cars that you have seen, you have
physically seen. Now I want to talk about switches
that you have physically seen. 7You mentioned that
you lnnged at some switches at Exponent and that
you'vse lnnked-at some awiltchas at Ford Central Labs.
Have you looked at awltches at any ntherllncatinn?

A. Those would be the only two places wheare
we disassembled switchas.

" Q. And as far as I remember your testimony,
you don'tk knnﬁ tha exacE numbgr-af Ewitches you
looked zt at Exponent; you think it's more than
between, but that's about all you can say. Ie that
a fair ntatemeﬁt?

A. That's correct.

a. Qkay. And de you know the numbar of
ewitches tﬁat ydu looked at at Central Laks?

A. No, I dnn'ﬁ.

Q. Can you give us any ballpark idea?

a. It's in tha order of ten or eleven.

AAR COUORT REPORTERS 713 4645-9325
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. And that was done in 19987

A, Noe. That would've been done Iln 1999.

0. Okay. After tha recall er hefore the
recall? |

A Before the racall.

Q. And the sxaminaticn ¢f switches at

Exponent, that was after the recall?

A, Yed.

Q. Okay. Ae I understand it, you're the
designated representative here today about the
recall and the root cause of the recall. am I
correct on that?

A, I believe that's correct.

Q. Can you tell me the current statusx of the

recall? And by that I mean, how many vehiclass have

baen returned and repaired?
A. I den't know the exact number on that.
How many owners have been notifled?
. I don't know the exact number on that.
Aow many parts have been returned tc Ford?
F dun't know .that exact numbser.

PQ you know where the parts are?

? 0 B B W O

The pﬁrta are at Exponent that were

returned to Ford.

Q. Exponent ia a company that is a consulting

AAR COURT REPORTERS 13 466-9325
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¢ompany that Pord uaes from time to time?
A. That's corraect.
Q. And they'rs located -- The office that
have the switehes ara located here in Hichigané
A That's corract.
Q. How many -- My understanding is 273 --

approximately 273,000 vehicles were reczlled by

Ford. Ie that coneistent with your understanding?
A, That -- That sovundse c¢onsiatent.
0. Ckay. And I'va geen documentatiocn that

indicates there's about -- 0f that recalled
poepulation, there have been a significant number
avery pecple that have brought their cars in. Are
you able to tell me in percentages what you think
that ie?
| A. I think it'ms -- What I've hesard ise that
it‘l.in axcesgas of 60 percent.

Q. Okay. And when Ford iesued the recall,

thay ~- they racall notice provided for a interim

and a long-term repalr and it alsoc provided that the

Ford dealers rnﬁurn copies of the -- I'm sorry --
return parte, the old parte to Ford, carrect?

A, I belleva ilnguaga in the racall netice
asked im that, ves.

Q. Okay. And ae I understand it, today of
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the 273,000 recalled vehicles, Ford has

approximately 15,000 parts that it has gotten back

in the recall. 1Ia that cconsistent with what vou
understand? ‘

A, That'a coasistent.

Q. What happened to the rest of the parts
that were racalled and -- and changed out?

A, They ware not returned te Ford.

Q. Do you know why?

A. No, I do nect,

Q. Did Ford ask "ite dealers toc return the

parts for examination?

A. Ford asked as part of the recall notice

that thes pwitches be returned,.

0. When did Foxd ask ita dealers to do that?
A. With the rmzall notice.

Q. And so we look at the paperwork that went
cut with the recall notice, there was paparwork sent
only to the dealers te alert them that thie was

coming, right?

A. I1'm net sure what the whole proceas ie
on -- on what the -- what they send cut to who.
Q. All right. Do you know how many switches

have been dastroyad, lost, thrown away?

A. Noa, I do not.

AMPp COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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! Q. Have you tried toc find that out from
anybody?
A. It's -- All the I know is the switches

that have been returned.

g. Do you know where the awitchas, when they
were raetbturned, where they -- were they gent tc Ford?

A. There -- There's a procesas in place., And
again, I don't krow wh;t the exact detalls are. But
it would've been returned to a Ford location.

Q.I And did Pord itself do any tests on the
raturned parts other than shipping off toc Exponent?
I'm trying to find, did Ford do any tests or
examination of the returned parts?

A, On some of the initkial returned parts
we" -- we had them eventually breught into our
Bullding and we lcooked through scme cf those parta
and did msoma alectrical teats.

Q. Whan you amay yﬁu looked through soma of
those parxts, this is parta that ware raturnad early
or ir the recall campalgn?

A. That's corract.

Q. And approximately how many did you and
yeur team, I guess, iook at?

A, With a let of rounding arror, the nunber

la probably a thaugand.
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Q. Okay. What did you de? I mean, what --
Qhat physically was done to this more or less a
thougsand switchea?

A. Bagically, their dates codes were written
down, the VIN number was written down. There may
have been some other iﬁfnrmatinn that came with the
switches that would've been written down. Some of
the switcheg were elactrically tested. Some of the
Switches were lookad at to s=e there was
some -- somathing that locked phyaically wrong with
them.

. The thousand or seo switches that came in,
did you alss note the mileage cno the switches, how
many miles were reported Lo h;ve been on thq awitech?

. A I =-- I'd have to look and see exaccly
what'ms listed with each of thoss awitches. But
that -- that would be information that would've been
pn:nib}a cte hava, yaﬁ.

@.  And would you agrea with me, that would ke
information thar you would want ta know?

A. Yas. |

Q. Okay. And I mean, all of the paperwork
I've seen, there alwa}s -- 1t appears to me there
would be alwayes a gquestion of how many piles were con

the vehicle at the time of either the replacement of
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'the part or any incidenkt that's reported, That's

conegistent with Fcrd;a view, correct? Am I correct?

A. That's correct.

2. And the -- of the 1,000 or so that wera
lookad that rthat came in early on in the recall, gid
you have saome formal way of categorizing and signing
thoae in, or a spread sheet prepared and I wanted ko
aese what thope -- who thouee switches were, ware
records kept on that?

A.. I think there was a -- y¥ou know, sgome --
soma documentation tha; wag put together. I think
it was in the form of a spread sheet.

0. Who was in charge of that?

A. Thowe initial parta were done by the
tc;hnolcgist that works for me, Rilcn Janstic.

Q. And this waa done scmetima after May of
'99, gincea that's when the recall was aanouncad?

A. | That's correct.

Q. And of the thousand or s0 sawltches that
came in, how many did you look at? I maan, more
than just, you know, see on the table., Obviously, I
know you locked at planty'nf them. How many of them
did you actuilly exiﬁina? That's a4 better way to
way it.

A, The -- Actuaily, I den't think I
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persconally =xamined any of them. There may have
been some that I did, but --

Q. Okay. And of this thousand that came
back, did anyone report teoc you that there were
switches in that thougand that had erxacked ar
leaking Xapton? |

A. Yed.

Q. Okay. How many of that thousand do you

recall people told you had cracked or leaking

Kapton?

AL I don't remembar what the number was.

Q. _Cnuld'va bhean cne, it could've been mare
than one?

A, It wae more than cna.

2. Ckay. But you don't know how many?

A. I don't remember.

Q. You den't know whather it was the quiat

awitch or not a quiet wwitch?

A, Ic wvulé'vu been Town Car switches.

ﬁ. Bo they would've all been snap awitches?
A. Yas. |

o. Now, of this thousand or sc awitches that

were examinad by Mr. Janetic --
A, Yed.

Q. -- what was he looking for? Do you kaow?

'AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-932S
9537 Jones Road, Bo. 363, Houmton, Texas 770&5




10
11
12
13
14
15
1a
17

18

19

20
21
22
23
24

25

249

A, He was looking for some signs of -- of
damage to the awitch housing. He was looking for
dome electrical anomaly with the switch.

Q. Can you explain to us how you do thar?

a, We would puf an ohm meter betwsen the pins
of the Bwitch and also between the pins and the hex
pert of the switeh.

o. What would tell you that thare would he
pome anomaly?

A. - If thare was & high resistance bestween the
two pine of the gwitch cor 1f there was any
reglatance between the pins and the hex port.

. And what mhould a normal reading he
between, let's say, the hex pert and the terminalry

A, It.ahuuld be gpen.

Q. And whatr -- wh&ﬁ should a normal reading
be betwwen the terminales? |

A. It's should be a short,

Q. Which would read as what?

A. ‘Zero.

Q. And waﬁ thafe any particular methed af
collecting this thousand other th;n firat in the
door? |

A. That was the meﬁhad;

2. Okay. Aand did -- did scmecna at Ford cut
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open any of those switches, to your knawledge?

A. Some of those awitches ware cpened, I
believe, at Center Labhoratories,

Q. Ckay. Did you participate in that or were
You not in?nlved_in that?

A, I wagsn't there for copening cof switcheas,

no.

Q. Ckay. Were you the one that asked that
they be opened?

A.. I think sﬁ, ves.

g. Okay. And -- And what -- Well, have you
seen pictures or anything of what they found when
Ehey opened up wome of Lhe gwitchea?

A. Yag. There were some picturma,

Q. How did you detarmine which of the

switches to open up?

A. Thay would've been switchas that ahowed
sithér the electrical anomaly or -- or damage to the
plaﬁtic. -

Q. The cneg that read normal, no further

investigaticen was made of them?

A. Not at this peoint in time.

. And haas itlbean done -- Has anyhody done
anything sincﬁ then with that éruup. to your h

knewladga?l
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A, So far, I don't believe that any more have
been lcocoked at.
0. And did you get =scme kind of written

report frem Central Labs on what they found?

A. There was a repert genarated on those
parts,

0. And what do you recall it provided?

A. It showad that all the Kaptons had -- had

a l=ak p;th through and that brake fluid had leaked
into the mlactrical side.

o. And ds you know who at Texas Instruments
was informad, if anyene, of thoase results?

A. I dnn't.knnw aof -- of that for asure.

Q. Did you ask someone to notlfy Texaas
Instruments?

A. The -- I -- I don't think s, no.

Q. Wow, other than this group of switches
that were 1unkeé at at Faord Ceptral Labs, did Ford
look at ﬁny other switchas that came back as a

result of the recalil?

A. Yas, wa did. _

Q. Explain the process that was used for
that .

A, It waa.a'précesu that was developed at
Ford, T.I. and bDu Pont at Expunent where the -- the
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switches were opened up and reviewed under Lthe
microscope,

Q- When you lcoked at the firet thousand
switches that came back, that was sometime in 1999;
is that righr?

A. Yeah, X think that was io "89.

a. And the examination of switches at
ﬁxponent, that would be something that has occurred
juét recently? Am I ¢orrect?

a. The examinatien that we had, yes, was Jjust
recently,

Q. Betweaen the time that they wers looked at,
the first group that waas locked at at Central Labs
and the time that yau weant to Exponent, did anyone
lock at any ewltches, to your knowledge, that came
back in the recall?

A. I think that there was ;nma ongoing
invaatigaﬁinn, thai Exponent was opening up some
ﬁieae: and thay were looking at those. I don't
remember under what diraction they -- they had been
given to do that, but they had -- they were
collecting all the awlkches for us and continuing on
the catagarization that we had Bﬁarted. We sent
them the th&usand ewitcheas that wea had. So thers

were some switches that they -- that they had opened

AAAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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‘up .

Q. I get the impressicn from your answer, it
was not scomething afganized, ho organized

investigation that you asked for, at least bektween

those two pariod of times?

A, Not an organized investigation.

Q. You think somebedy at Expenent was lockiag
at atuff, but yocu're not sure exactly what they were
deing and who gave them the instructions?

A. I believe it was either mysalf -- or it
was Stave -- It was pr;bahly Steva Reimers that --
that did the speclfie instructions to Exponent as to
what they wars dolng. But there wasn't a writtan
protocoel, per se, as to what they should do..

‘ Q. And do you know -- any ldea of the number

of awitches that thay may have examined?

A, I den't know that number off the top of my
head. -
‘ Q. Would it fair to a;y it's probably fairly
samall?

A. Fairly amall, vyes. _

Q. . Eave you tried to distinguish between the

quiet and the leud awltch in the recall that you've
received back?

A. Ro, wea have nat; okbher tharn the part
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numbers are differenc.

2. Why not, if that's your theory --
A. Bacause the part numbers are different.
Q. Re. No. If your theory is -- As I

understand; you have some theery that you think the
problems are less likely in the quiet switches. I
guess my guestion to you is: Why is it that Ford
has dene nothing to examine that?

A. _ 1 guesB, to -- to go back to your previous
questlion, the quiast ewitches have a different part
number, so they are idéntified differently as the
parts that have coeme back. The -- The Town Car
pwitcheg are the ones that were that we're sseing
leaky bErake fluigd.

- Q. You've done no formal examination of the
returned switghes from the recall to quantify that.
Am-I right?

A. That would be included in -- in the list
of paxte that T.¥. was looking -- or that Exponent
put togather.

Q. I'm jﬁﬁt asking, are you aware of any tegt
that they're doing specifically tec look at that
diffarence and try to quantify it If cone exists.
That's all I'm agking.

A Ko.

RRA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3323
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Have you asked anyone to do that?
To guantify the difference?
Yes,

No, we haven't.

o I T = T " s

ﬁkay. Have you -- Mr. Porter, have you

made -- hava you given any dapositions relating ko

your role in the lnvestligation other than the

deposition I think you gave in the Gonzales cage?
MR. MAYER: I8 that right, Mr. Jolly?
MR. JOLLY: Uh-huh.

A. That'e the nhly othar deposition.

Q. And have vyou been agked to provide any
raports other than the documents that have been
produced to us, to WHTSA or any other gnvgrnment
ajﬁncy on this issues?

A. Neo, we have anot.

G. Now, the -- there has been aome dliacussiocn
abaut'thiiluamphin switch. Did you personally look
at the Mamphis awitch yourasalf?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Boa that would ks anothaxr ewitch that you

lookad at st Ford Central Lak?

A. And I looked at it frequently.
Q. Is that it next te you right thare?
A. Yagq.

: AARA COTURT REPORTERS .713 466-9125
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. 1 } o. What 12 it about it that you look at
2 frequently? '
S A, The Kapton of the switch shows that there
4 are multi -- Well, the Kapton of the switch is the

5 thing that we like to lock at tha best.

1 Q. Ckay.
7 A, If I can find ic.
8 0. 1ﬁd this 18 the Kapton that was removed

9 from the switch after it caught on fire?

10 A That's correct.

11 Q. Okay, So th; switch had been through saome
12 tharmal evant?
. . 13 A. Yeas.
14 Q. And --
15 T A, It was observed by the sarvice technlician
16 |that it was burning.
17 0. Lika a.eandie?
18 A. hika ; candle, is what --
1% | Q. Now, have you ever sssn any of the Texas
20 Instrumants brake pressure switches ever burn? Have

21 you seen 1t, like the ona in the Memphlas car?
22 A. I have sasn the video tape of Texas

23 Instruments' teat. I have aesen the video tape of

‘24 |Pord's test. I have lit with a match Texas

. 25 Insetruments! switchesg, §
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. Other than that, you have not ssen one
burning, yeou know, in a mechanic'\s garage or
anything like thac?

A, No, I have not.

Q. And what akeout the Eapton that was removed

trom the Memphieg switch ie it that you looked at?

A. The deformation in the Kaptoen appears to

be aimllar to what I would call Mickey Mouses ears

and therg are two cracke in that switch that our
friende from Texae would -- loock liks Texas
Longhorn. The -- Claatrly, this awitch has craated a
leak path from the brake pressure side -- or from
the fluid side to the mlectrical =ailds.

Q. Am I correct that you are not gualified to
explain -- to tescify whether or not any cracks
resulted from the fire, ysu're nmot a chemist, you
don't know what effect heat would have on Kapkton?

A. I can't tell you what effect heat would

havae on the EKapton.

Q. Weuld you pams the sample to me juat for a
pacond.

A. (Witness cqmpliel.}

Q. Dc you know what layer of Kapteon this is?

A. I think it's marked on the hag.

Q. I only see two layers. There are three
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layers in the awitch, are thare not?

A. There are.

Q. Ia chere another one back there?

a. No, there are not.

Q. Do you know where the third layer is?
A. Thisa was a popular ewitch., It's besn

handlad by a lot of different people. The third
layer*'e been mieplaced.

2. -Who has had possesaion of this switch in
the last year or two, you or Exponent?

A, It'e ba;n in" my pessesasion.

Q. Do yoeu knew when the other piece of Kapton
went miseing?

A. Somatime prior te¢ -- pricor to the

beginning of this year.

Q. And who had it when it was loat?

A, I'm hot aure Hhu had ie.

Q. Who are the candidates?

A. The candidate;, again, if -- it could've
baan anyhaﬁy whoe -- who had basn looking at -- at

the part; Central Lab, T.I. Thera'®s a rather larga
number vf people that have looked at it.

Q. Did Mr. Slater look at this part when he
was here visiting Fordz

A. I belimve that he did.
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1] Q. Were all three layers there when he looked

2 at Lie?

3 A I don't recall.

4 Q. Would you defer to his nokes on that?

5 A, i'd defer to his notes,

& Q. and there's also some question marxka, It

7 gays one, No. 2, and then No. 1, question mark in

g parenthesas, No. 1, No. 2, gueation mark in

9 parenthesss. Did you make those marks?

10 A.. No, I did not.

11 Q. o you know what they refer to?

12 A. No, I do nokt.

13 @. Are you ahle to the say which is the firast

14 layer and which is the second layer?

15 . A. I would say that the first layer is the

16 one that isg labeled peund sign 1. But there may be
17 Aome -- Bomé infafmatiun rthat somebody had along the
18 line cthat would change that.

13 ' Q. How many miles did the Memphis car have on
29 ie? ﬁ; you know?

21 A, I dan't ramamber off the top of my heaad.
22 But I don't recall it was in the neighberhood of

24 Q. Would the recorde ke Ethe best evidenge of

25 |that? g
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a. That would be the bast evidence.

Q. Qkay. Now, other than the fact that you
like to look at the Kapton in the Memphis switeh, is
there any othar particular reason you refer to it
from time to time?

a. It is the beat example we have from the
fleld of -- of the fire that did not consume all of

the plastic components.

Q. And how wae that fire extinguished?

Aa. I believe thay'used a fire extinguisher.

o. And whaere dajynu get that understanding
fram?

A. From what I remember, it is stated about

the svent at the time.

T 0. Aré there any cther amwltches that ycu have
locked at other than the ones wa've talkad about so
£ar? -

A i.don't knew that there are.

Q-.. Now, there was also a chemlcal analysis
done of the £luide in the Hemphis.awitch. Do you
recall that? “

A. I racall that there was an analyais done.

0. WEE.that dona by tha cgnt;al Lab at ford

along with Taxaw Instrumanta?

A. I belleve that Centrel Lab at Ford and
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Texas Insatrument both ¢id a chemical analysis.

g. Did they agree on the analysis?

A, I believe they agreed on the chémicals
that were present,

Q. Okay. What is your -- What is your
bhest -- What 1s your beat explamnaktion for the pericd
of time that you believe Texas Instrumants ssnt
awitchga that were not manufactured properly Eto
Ford, the atart date and the encd date? From
evgrything you know today, what do you believe those
dateg are?

A, November 1lekt, 1%91 thrcocugh Novamber lat,
19%2. Or maybe it was November 34th.

Q. All right. And ie that based on the
information that you'wve had at the time yeou planned
the recall and then confirmed by subssagquent evente
like the documents you've described leooking at?

A, 'That's correct.

Q. Why do you believe it starta Novenber 1st,
1991. You've alao told me that the automated
¢rimping didn't hegin themn.

A. We dom't have a surs way of identifying
;hfch -- which partslwera -~ far sure when -- when
the automated equlpment parts were actwally put into

production.
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1 | o. Have ther; been any car firass that you
. 2 know of where the switch date codes have been in a

3 period of time where you know switches were prepared

4 on the manually fed crimping lin=?

5 A. I don't know of any of those.

B | Q. Have you lcooked?

7 A, Of the -- Of the ones that ws have, I

B don't -- I don't think any of them were from ‘that
9 .|time period.
10 2. I'm just trying to find out, did you azk

11 somecne to go do that 1nv=atigatiun?

12 A, Yaesa, the guestion. waa -- was asked.
i3 2. Okay, And the answer you got back was?
1'l' 14 A. No.
15 i Q. And whe did you aak that of and who gave
18 ¥ou the answer?
17 A. It wourld've been Steve Reimers.
148 Q. 80 am I correct that tha date -- the
19 |Novamber lat, 1591 date iw aimply -- it's & -- it's

20 an artificial date that Ford has selactad in
21 order -- Well, let me atob thare. It's an

22 artificial date. It doesn't really correspond to

213 anything that you know of occurred in the --
24 A. It's a date that Ford selected to assure
25 that we got all possible switchses that could have a g
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leaking diaphragm that wauld've resulted in a fire.

Q. Okay. &And the --

A. $ince there was no other way of any -- to
tell how the switchea might -- what switches might
fail or may not £ail.

Q. fhat's what I'm trying toc get at. If
Ford's poeition ie that it'a the returned to the
autcmated crimping line that be#gan problems and
those problems persisted for some pericd of time, do
you'knnﬁ when Texas Instruments began shipping
product that was manufactured on the ﬁutomated

crimping line after the alert expired? Dc you know

a date?
F I don't know what that date i=.
R + 811 right. In the inveatlgation, did you

asgk your paaple ro investigaté that?

A. I agked T.I. co tells ua Ethat.

Q2. And what 1l the date or approximate dates
that you goL?

A Tha npprpximﬁta_d;t-s that we got were Lths
end of Dacembar and early January.

2. Do you know when the alert actuzlly
expired, the alert issued by Ford, the 390-day alert?

A. I don't know the date exactly, but I

believe it was the end of Dacember.

i AAA COURT REPCRTERS 7131 466-9325
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1 _ . All right. Apnd soc the November lst date
. | 2 was a date Ford melected, to be on the conservative

3 aide?

1 A. That was to assure that in the ewvent that

5 there was information on the manual -- problems with

é the manual switch, we would bhe sure to collect those

7 alana,

B Q. Kow, have therae beean car fireama in '%1 and

9 '92 Linceln Town Cars prior to cars bullt in

10 Novembar of 19317

i1 A. Can you -- Which -- Which vehicles do you

12 mean exacrly? -

13 . Q. 131 or '%92 Lincelns. Have you aver heard
. 14 of firea in '91 or '92 Lincolna before Hovember 1,

15 134917

15 A. I really don't go ints -- T dan't

19 investigate that infermation.

iB . Q. And you did not in this investigatien?
13 . A, That was not part of thie inyastigatinn.

20 This investigation wae looking at the brake pressure
:21 awltch.
Z2 Q- Now, the cutoff date, the end date you

23 ‘have, 1s November of 1892 and you'ra nck sure

24 whether lt's Novembar 1 or November 30th; right?

25 A. That's correct. é
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- Q. You'd have to leook at the recall to make
that call?

A That's correct.

Q. What ia it about November 30th, 1592 that
Ford believes marks the end of-any alleged
manufacturing problem at Texas Instruments?

A. The data that we had with the -- with
regult that showed firem in Town Cars for December
cf 1982 was zero. So we felt rthat any defect that
may have gotten in thare would've worked through the

syst=n by that point iﬁ time.

Q. Okay. " That was based on trend data?

A. Trend data.

Q. Okay. We talked about that sarlier this
ma;ning?

A. That's right.

Q. And that's the baaims of the Nevamber of

1992 cutcff, You savw a declips,in which you
-pﬁrceived to be firas that you thought were
attributable to symptoms that c¢ould relate to brake
preswure switth.andryou felt that was a sufficient

margin of safety?

A. That'e correckt.
Q. Anything alge?
A. That was the primary drive,.
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Q- Now, during this investigation that you

launched, did you have convarsations with pecople
from United Technologies, did you pefannally?

A. No, we did not. We had Norm LaPointe
speak with United Technelogies.

Q. Did you attand any meeting wheres pecple
from United Technologlesa w;re in actandance?

A. I -- I -- 1 guess I can't.aay
specifically. Somebody from United Technologies may
have :c#e to one af the team -~ one or twe of the

team meEetings along the way.

2. You don't have a speacific recollection?

A. I don't have a spscific recollecticn.

0. Would you be able to tall me who that
pareon would -- waa?

A. No, I couldn't.

. Do you know what -- what the purpose of
them attending any maatingn'gﬁit tﬂay may have
atteanded would hava?

A. Tha purpoee would've basn to respond te
&Ny guestions tﬁit the tesam might've had, including
que:tiﬁns from Taxaa Instrument.

Q. And Norm L#Puin;e was the persén an your
ceam that dealt with United Technologles?

A. . That's correct.
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Q. Did you have any phone calls from the
pe¢ople at United Technologies during the course of
the investigatign?

A. I don't believe that I did.

Q. fo you know the date that Ford began
producing Lincoln Town Cars with Texas Instruments:
brake preeasure gwitch?

A. I believe that would bea November 1st,
1991,

Q. Anéd as I understand 1t, the brake pressure
switcﬁ was uaed in the"sl, 192, '93, '94, '55, '89§
maodel lines for Lineoln Town Car?

A It was used on the 1992 thrcuéh '96
Lincolﬁ Town Car. The 1991 was prior to the T.I.

brake prezsure switch.

Q. When they had a vacuum switch?
A, That'sa correct.
Q. Vacuum dump valve; is that the way to

describe it?

A. Yan .

Q. ' Okay. And then in.liﬂ? Lincoln want to =a
different design?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And what did Lincoln go te in the

'97 vehicle model year?
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- A. They went to a brake pedal switch.

Q2. Explain tn.us in layman's terms how that
works, Mr. Porter.

A. It works ldentically the same as the brake
pressurs switch, except it'a mounted on the brake
pedal inetead of the brake lina.

Q. Dkay. And when you step on your brake,
what happens to the switeh?

A. When you Btep on the brake, firet of all,

the brake lamp switch engages; and secondly, the_‘-

ithe new brake awitch disengages power from the

cruise contrel clutch coil.

. And it's mounted inside the pamsengear
cempartmeng?

) a. Yea, 1t 1s.

Q. And were you involved in the deaigp of
that new ecruisme control eystem for the '37 Lincoln
Town Car?

1 A. . Ho, I wae nokt.
a. In your investigation, did yow determine

that the switch was no. longer being used in the

Lincoln Town Car?

A. Yean.
Q. Haw did you find that ouk?
a. It wag reported to us by --
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Q. Did you ask why that there had been a

design change and what -- what -- what the reasons

behind it wera?

A. Yea, we did.
. And what did you learn?
A. It was lase expenajive.

g Anything else?

A Hg.

Q Sc it was chsapar to put the switch at tha
braks psedal?

A. It was less éexpenaive to packayge bthe
awiteh at the brake pedal and that's pocassible.

2. All right. And was there some changes Lo
the '%7 Lincepln that made that possible, where it

wasn't bhafore?

A, I don't know what the details are of that.
Q. Are yon aware of any changes?

A.. No, I'm- not.

Q. That would've preventad that_frcm being

ﬁlEEEd ot tﬁe_brnku pedal of the '92 Linceln Town
car?

a. I'm not awara of that, no. W®What I do know
is'that.it wasn't puﬁ there on the '%2.

a. Right. And part of your investigation --

I think it'e in the Bxhibit 5 -- you say it's no
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longer being used after model year aa?

A, Righks.

Q. And the same thing would be btzue with the
Crown Vic and the Grand Marguls, it was phased ouc
in the '9?‘mad§1 year?

.A. That'a carrect.

o. And it was put on the brake pedal for

reaagons cf cost?

A Yay,

a.- As far as vou know?

A. As far as I inaw.'

Q. And you'rxe not aware of anything that

would've prevented chat design in che '22 ar '393
Crown Vic or Grand Marguis?

A. I'm not aware of anything thar would've
prevented or -- or not prevented that design. I do
knoew that tha idea of using the brake pressure
awiteh wam‘cansidared of v?1u= becauma it wae using
aldifferunt machaniasm of the brake system; =0 it
would be an independent, radundant.nhut-aff from the
other switeh that was on the brake pedal.

Q. Ckay. The huuf 13 latea. If you weouldn't
mind, I would like aﬁ qxplanntibh.nn ﬁow that works,
why it's a redundant switch that'sa usad. I th;nk

the other switch is called the BOO switch?
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A. That stands for Brake On-0Off.

MR. MAYER: 1If you have no cbjection,
I'd like to keep going, but I will defer to you.
Ic's 5:00 o'clock.,

MR. FEENEY: ¥eah. Welre going to
adjaurn.

MRE. MAYER: Okay.

MR. FEENEY: You can 8ave your
gueation and gak the sxplanation in the marninj.

MR. MAYER: All right.

{Prncee&inga concluded for the day.!

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3325
8557 Jones Road, No., 363, Houataon, Texas 77065

12921




10
11
12
13
1la
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

272

CHANGES AND SIGNATURE

FAGE LINE CHANGE REASON
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I, FREDERICK JAMES PORTER, have read the
foregoing deposition and hereby afEfix my signature
that game ig Lruese and correct, except ag notad
above .

FREDERICK JAMES FCQRTER

THE STATE OF }
COUNTY OF )
Refore me, _. , on this day

persconally appearad FREDERICK JAMES PCRTER, known to
meé [ar proved ko ma on the ocath of

or through

{deacription of identity
card or other documentc)) £o be the pergacn whose name
is "subscribed to the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the
purposes and conslderation therein expressed..

(Seal) Given under my hand and seal of office
day of .

Fhia

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR

THE BTATE OF
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